
           

  AGENDA 
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR SESSION
November 6, 2013

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

             

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM
 

CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

COUNCIL REPORTS
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS
 

The Mayor and Council may consider and/or take action on the items listed below:

ORDER OF BUSINESS: MAYOR WILL REVIEW THE ORDER OF THE MEETING
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
 

1.   Letter of Appreciation for Development and Infrastructure Services Department
 

2.   Letter of Appreciation for Oro Valley Police Department
 

CALL TO AUDIENCE  – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and
Town Council on any issue not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting
Law, individual Council Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be placed
on a future agenda, or respond to criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council may
not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak during
“Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker card.
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
(Consideration and/or possible action)
 

A.   Minutes - October 9 and October 16, 2013
 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

1.   PRESENTATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE TOWN'S ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013

 

2.   RESOLUTION NO. (R)13-65, AUTHORIZING THE CONSTRUCTION OF NARANJA PARK
IMPROVEMENTS

  



 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  (The Council may bring forth general topics for future meeting agendas.
Council may not discuss, deliberate or take any action on the topics presented pursuant to ARS
38-431.02H)
 

CALL TO AUDIENCE  – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and
Town Council on any issue not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting
Law, individual Council Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be placed
on a future agenda, or respond to criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council may
not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak during
“Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker card.
 

ADJOURNMENT
 

POSTED:  10/30/13 at 5:00 p.m. by mrs

When possible, a packet of agenda materials as listed above is available for public inspection at least 24
hours prior to the Council meeting in the office of the Town Clerk between the hours of 8:00 a.m. –
5:00p.m.

The Town of Oro Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If any person with a
disability needs any type of accommodation, please notify the Town Clerk’s Office at least five days prior
to the Council meeting at 229-4700.

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO SPEAKERS

Members of the public have the right to speak during any posted public hearing. However, those
items not listed as a public hearing are for consideration and action by the Town Council during
the course of their business meeting. Members of the public may be allowed to speak on these
topics at the discretion of the Chair.

If you wish to address the Town Council on any item(s) on this agenda, please complete a speaker card
located on the Agenda table at the back of the room and give it to the Town Clerk. Please indicate on
the speaker card which item number and topic you wish to speak on, or if you wish to speak
during “Call to Audience”, please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue
speaker card.

Please step forward to the podium when the Mayor announces the item(s) on the agenda which you are
interested in addressing.

1. For the record, please state your name and whether or not you are a Town resident.
2. Speak only on the issue currently being discussed by Council. Please organize your speech, you will
only be allowed to address the Council once regarding the topic being discussed.
3. Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.
4. During “Call to Audience” you may address the Council on any issue you wish.
5. Any member of the public speaking must speak in a courteous and respectful manner to those present.

Thank you for your cooperation.

  



Town Council Regular Session Item #   1.           
Meeting Date: 11/06/2013  

Submitted By: Julie Bower, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Letter of Appreciation for Development and Infrastructure Services Department

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
N/A

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
N/A

Attachments
Letter of Appreciation



12 October 2013

Paul Keesler
Director of Development and Infrastructure Services 

11,000 N. La Canada 

Oro Valley, Az 85737

pkeesler@orovalleyaz.gov

Phil Trenary
Director of Operations

680 W. Calle Concordia

Oro Valley, Az  85704

ptrenary@orovalleyaz.gov

 
Robert Wilson, C.F.M.
Civil Engineering Technician

Stormwater Utility

Town of Oro Valley

520-229-4879 (Office) * 520-940-1938 (Cell.) * 250-229-5075 (Fax)

Gentlemen,

I thank you sincerely for reassuming the Town's responsibility to protect homowners' properties

from easement outflow excesses and for benefiting our property in particular with armament that

should serve until the 1000-year event or maybe even survive the next water-main break.  I'm pleased

to know that what you have done for us 

Two views looking southward:

Four views looking northeastward:
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will be used as a showpiece for other residents, in order to help them to protect their properties and 

to control the flow of water through the Town of Oro Valley, as well as is possible.

I thank you, too, for the care that went into doing what you could to restore our property 

to its natural condition.  I hope to live to see the day that those mesquite seeds grow into trees taller

than I am. 

Thank you for doing your jobs with class.

All best wishes,

-Steve-

Stephen A. Langford

9140 N. Shadow Mt. Dr.

Town of Oro Valley, Greater Tucson

Arizona, AZ 85704-6742

Copies to:  Arnie Rosner, Larry Cobb, Joubert Davenport, Joann K. Nakagawa



Town Council Regular Session Item #   2.           
Meeting Date: 11/06/2013  

Submitted By: Catherine Hendrix, Police Department

Information
Subject
Letter of Appreciation for Oro Valley Police Department

Attachments
Zinkin Appreciation



From: Zinkin, Mike  
Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2013 10:47 AM 
To: dsharp@ovpd.org; Stevens, Larry 
Subject: Appreciation 
 
Danny/Larry, 
  
Last night, 10/23, my neighbor (across the fairway) passed away.  His wife, Mary Ann, 
called our home and asked that my wife be there to assist her.  Both my wife, Ramona, 
and I immediately responded to her request. 
  
When I arrived, within minutes, I found the paramedics were back with Tim, the 
deceased, working to revive him.  During this time I had the occasion to meet Sgt. 
Slone and Officer Gastelum, who had responded to the incident.  Sgt. Slone informed 
me that if Tim does not survive they would inform the primary care doctor to get a 
signature on the Death Certificate, and that an officer would remain until the body was 
removed.  Shortly thereafter the paramedics come out and informed us the Tim had 
passed away. 
  
True to her word Sgt. Slone and Officer Gastelum went to work as the paramedics 
cleaned up the scene.  When the paramedics departed, the room where Tim 
passed was cleaned up and was presentable for Mary Ann to visit and pay her 
respects.  The Officers did contact the Doctor to insure that Mary Ann did not have to 
deal with that unpleasant task. 
  
Sgt. Slone and Officer Gastelum consoled Mary Ann and informed her that they would 
be there as long as she needed them.  Mary Ann responded by saying that her friends 
were there and that she would be alright.  After a short period I informed Mary Ann 
that an Officer was going to remain until Tim's body was removed.  Mary Ann decided 
on a funeral home and your Officers went to work and stayed until the body was 
removed. 
  
I want to inform you that the compassion, empathy, and sympathy that your Officers 
displayed was suburb.  Sgt. Slone, knowing that Mary Ann might still require someone 
to talk to, informed my wife that she would be there until 0600 the next morning, and 
that if ANYTHING was needed to please call her.  She gave my wife her card with a 
direct number to the dispatchers should the need arise. 
  
Having never experienced this kind of trauma, you need to know that the actions of 
your Officers was so appreciated, not only by myself, but by all concerned.  Please give 
Stg. Slone and Officer Gastelum a big, no huge, THANKS for the way they carried out 
their job.  For them it might have been routine, for me, my wife, and Mary Ann it was 
most welcomed and could not have been appreciated more. 
  
Mike Zinkin 
Councilman - Town of Oro Valley 
520-471-0321 
mzinkin@orovalleyaz.gov  
 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   A.           
Meeting Date: 11/06/2013  

Requested by: Julie Bower Submitted By: Mike Standish, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Minutes - October 9 and October 16, 2013

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
N/A

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve, approve with the following changes) the October 9 and October 16, 2013 minutes.

Attachments
10/9/13 Draft Minutes
10/16/13 Draft Minutes
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MINUTES 
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL 

STUDY SESSION 
October 9, 2013 

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

STUDY SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hiremath called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Satish Hiremath, Mayor 
Lou Waters, Vice Mayor 
Brendan Burns, Councilmember 
Bill Garner, Councilmember (attended via telephone) 
Joe Hornat, Councilmember 
Mary Snider, Councilmember 

EXCUSED: Mike Zinkin, Councilmember 

1. Presentation - Community Policing

Police Chief Danny Sharp gave an introduction regarding community policing and 
discussed the following:

-Reactive, proactive and co-active policing strategies
-Community expectations
    -Low crime rate
    -Maintenance of community safety
    -Respond to emergencies
    -Expand community policing
    -Prevent crime
    -High visibility (HiVE)
    -Traffic safety

Principles of Community Policing:
    -Service
    -Accountability
    -Problem solving
    -Neighborhood focus
    -Decentralization
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The Town Council and Chief Sharp engaged in a question and answer session.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

No future agenda items were requested.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Hornat to adjourn the meeting at 7:17 p.m. 

MOTION carried, 6-0.

Prepared by:

_________________________
Michael Standish, CMC
Deputy Town Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the 
study session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona held on the 9th day of 
October 2013.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was 
present.

Dated this ____ day of _____________________, 2013.

__________________________
Julie K. Bower, MMC
Town Clerk
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MINUTES 
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR SESSION 
October 16, 2013 

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hiremath called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Satish Hiremath, Mayor 
Lou Waters, Vice Mayor 
Brendan Burns, Councilmember 
Joe Hornat, Councilmember 
Mary Snider, Councilmember 
Mike Zinkin, Councilmember 

EXCUSED: Bill Garner, Councilmember 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Hiremath led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS

Communications Administrator Misti Nowak announced the upcoming Town meetings 
and events.

COUNCIL REPORTS
   
Councilmember Snider recognized Sara Blanchard for her outstanding service and 
contributions to her community.

Councilmember Snider reported that the Your Voice our Future survey was available in 
the Explorer newspaper as well as online at YourVoiceOV.com. 

Councilmember Hornat attended An Evening of Play charity event at the Children's 
Museum on Saturday, October 12th.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS
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No reports were received. 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Mayor Hiremath reviewed the order of business and stated that the order would stand 
as posted. 

CALL TO AUDIENCE

Oro Valley Resident Bonnie Quinn encouraged residents to participate in the 
Arizona Run for the Fallen on October 18th.

PRESENTATIONS

1. Proclamation - Edward Jones Bag-A-Thon to benefit the Interfaith Community 
Services (ICS) Food Bank

Mayor Hiremath proclaimed October 16th, 2013 as the 7th Annual Edward Jones Bag-
A-Thon Day. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Councilmember Zinkin requested that item (B) be removed from the consent agenda for 
discussion. 

A. Minutes - September 18 and October 2, 2013

C. Appointment of Bruce Wyckoff to the Conceptual Design Review Board (CDRB)

D. Resolution No. (R)13-62, authorizing and approving Grant Contract #2014-PT-070 
between the Oro Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway 
Safety (G.O.H.S.) for funding capital outlay to purchase one (1) Police Package 
Motorcycle

E. Resolution No. (R)13-63, authorizing and approving Grant Contract #2014-AL-006 
between the Oro Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway 
Safety (G.O.H.S.) for funding of overtime and employee related expenses to 
enhance DUI enforcement in the Town of Oro Valley

F. Resolution No. (R)13-64, authorizing and approving Amendment Number 2 to 
Addendum 1 of the intergovernmental agreement with the City of Tucson relating 
to effluent and reclaimed water

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Zinkin to approve Consent Agenda items (A) and (C)-(F). 
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MOTION carried, 6-0. 

B. Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Financial Update through August 2013

Councilmember Zinkin requested clarification regarding the Contingency Reserve fund, 
General Fund reserves and the Bed Tax fund deficit.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Zinkin and seconded by Vice Mayor 
Waters to accept the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Financial Update through August 2013. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

REGULAR AGENDA

1. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF DISPLAY AND SALES OF RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLES BY LA MESA RV WITHIN ORO VALLEY MARKETPLACE, 
RANCHO VISTOSO NEIGHBORHOOD 4

Senior Planner Matt Michels gave an overview of item #1. 

Al Veliz, representative for La Mesa RV, spoke on security, safety and dust issues 
pertaining to the La Mesa RV events.

The following individuals spoke on item #1:

Oro Valley resident Donald Bristow 
President and CEO of the Greater Oro Valley Chamber of Commerce and Oro Valley 
resident, Dave Perry
Property Manager for Vestar, Deb Wood
Oro Valley resident Bill Adler

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by Vice Mayor 
Waters to approve the request for approval of recreational vehicle display and sales by 
La Mesa RV within the Oro Valley Marketplace, located at the southwest corner of 
Tangerine Road and Oracle Road with the provision to limit La Mesa RV to three (3) 
events through December 31, 2014. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION TO THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
EXPLORE LOWER LEVELS OF THE UTILITY TAX DURING THE 
PREPARATION OF THE 5-YEAR FINANCIAL FORECAST

Vice Mayor Waters gave an overview of the events that led to the increase of the Utility 
Tax.
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The following individual spoke on item #2:

Oro Valley resident Bill Adler

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Zinkin to take no action on item #2. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Councilmember Burns requested a future agenda item to discuss a sliding scale or 
reduced fee schedule for low income/disadvantaged children for use of Town facilities 
and programs, seconded by Councilmember Zinkin. 

CALL TO AUDIENCE

No comments were received. 

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Snider and seconded by 
Councilmember Burns to adjourn the meeting at 7:08 p.m. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

Prepared by:

________________________
Michelle Stine
Senior Office Specialist

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the regular session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona held on the 
16th day of October 2013.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held 
and that a quorum was present.

Dated this ____ day of ____________________, 2013.

_________________________
Julie K. Bower, MMC
Town Clerk



Town Council Regular Session Item #   1.           
Meeting Date: 11/06/2013  

Requested by: Stacey Lemos Submitted By: Stacey Lemos, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
PRESENTATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE TOWN'S ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR FISCAL
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends acceptance of the financial audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The certified public accounting firm of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. has completed the financial audit of
the Town for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  The audit was conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, and the auditors have rendered an opinion that the Town's
general purpose financial statements fairly present the Town's financial position as of June 30, 2013. 
This is also known as an unqualified, or clean, audit opinion.

It is important to note that there were no audit deficiencies or concerns presented to management during
the audit to cause the issuance of a separate Management Letter.

Attached is a copy of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which contains the audited
financial statements.  The CAFR will be submitted to the Government Finance Officer's Association for
the Excellence in Financial Reporting Award program for the 20th consecutive year.

Mr. Corey Arvizu, CPA, Partner, and Mr. Jim Rebenar, CPA, Manager, with the firm of Heinfeld, Meech
and Co., P.C. will be present to provide an overview of the audit to the Council this evening and answer
any questions the Council may have.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Key sections of the attached CAFR for Town Council review include the Letter of Transmittal located in
the beginning of the report (pages i - viii); the Independent Auditors' Report (pages 1 - 2); and
Management's Discussion and Analysis (pages 5 - 14).

The following is an overview of the Town's financial operations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013:

On June 30, 2013, the General Fund's end-of-year fund balance was $13,137,105, which
increased by $1,735,456, or 15%, compared to last year (page 28).  This was primarily due to
increased revenues from construction activity, such as permit fees and construction sales taxes,
and reduced departmental expenditures attributable to vacancy savings.

The Highway Fund's end-of-year fund balance was $3,517,765, which increased by $500,334,
or 17%, compared to last year (page 28).  This was due primarily to an increase in construction
sales taxes from development activity during the year.



sales taxes from development activity during the year.

The following is the financial position of the Oro Valley Water Utility at June 30, 2013:

Net income of $3,685,227 and capital contributions of $41,004 increased net assets by $3.7
million.  Total net assets at year-end were $64.7 million (page 34).

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to accept the Town's financial audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Attachments
FY 2013 CAFR
Govt Audit Stds Ltr
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Town of Oro Valley 
 
 

October 23, 2013 
 
Honorable Mayor, Members of Town Council and 
Citizens of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona: 
 
State law mandates that cities publish a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and audited in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a certified 
public accounting firm licensed in the State of Arizona.  Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby 
issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona (Town) for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town.  
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of 
the information presented in this report.  To provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management of the Town has established a comprehensive internal control 
framework that is designed both to protect the Town’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town’s financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Because 
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town’s comprehensive 
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free of material misstatement.  As management, we 
assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 
material respects. 
 
The Town’s financial statements have been audited by Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., a certified 
public accounting firm.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that 
the financial statements of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are free of material 
misstatement.  The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable 
basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the Town’s financial statements for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first 
component of the financial section of this report. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management 
provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements 
in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The Town of Oro 
Valley’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
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PROFILE OF THE TOWN  
 
The Town of Oro Valley was incorporated in 1974.  It is located in northeastern Pima County, six 
miles north of Tucson. The Town currently occupies a land area of 34.95 square miles and serves an 
estimated population of 43,070.  The population of Oro Valley has increased 45% since the 2000 
population of 29,700. 
 
Based on the 2010 Census data, Oro Valley has a median household income of $71,628, compared to 
the median household income for the state of Arizona of $50,296.  Oro Valley residents enjoy a 
comfortable hometown feel with a strong family orientation, excellent education system and 
abundant opportunities in a safe environment. 
 
The Town of Oro Valley operates under the Council-Manager form of government. Policymaking 
and legislative authority is vested in the Town Council, which consists of a Mayor and six Council 
Members. Council Members are elected to four-year staggered terms. The citizens of Oro Valley 
elect the Mayor.  The Council, from among its members, selects the Vice-Mayor. The Town Council 
is responsible, among other things, for the adoption of local ordinances, budget adoption, the 
development of citizen advisory committees, the hiring and removal of the Town Manager, the 
Police Chief, Town Attorney and Town Magistrate.  The Town Manager is responsible for 
implementation of the policies of the Town Council. The Town Manager appoints all other 
department heads except those mentioned above under Town Council responsibilities. 
 
The Town of Oro Valley provides a full range of services including police protection; the 
construction and maintenance of streets and related infrastructure; the provision of water and 
stormwater services; public transportation services; recreational activities and cultural events. In 
addition to general government activities, the governing body is financially accountable for the 
Municipal Property Corporation; therefore, this activity is included in the reporting entity. Additional 
information in regards to the Municipal Property Corporation can be found in Note 1 in the notes to 
the basic financial statements. 
 
As with all cities in the State of Arizona, the Town of Oro Valley is required to comply with Article 
IX, Section 20 (1) of the Arizona Constitution, which sets limits on the Town’s legal budget capacity.  
The Town currently operates under the Alternative Expenditure Limitation – Home Rule Option.  
This option allows the Town Council to establish the budgetary limits locally, rather than being 
restricted by the State-imposed expenditure limitation.  The voters must authorize this option every 
four years.  It was last authorized by the citizens of Oro Valley in March of 2010. 
 
The annual operating budget serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and control.  
The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in 
the annual operating budget approved by the Town Council.  The Town’s proposed operating budget 
is presented to the Town Council for review throughout the budget cycle starting in January and 
approved in May.  The Town Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and 
to adopt the final budget by no later than the second Monday in August.  Budget amendments 
requiring the approval of the Town Council include the following:  budget transfers between funds; 
transfers to fund additional personnel or increased expenditures as a result of personnel 
reclassifications; transfers that would reduce or eliminate funding for items designated in the adopted 
Capital Improvement Plan; and transfers that would reduce or eliminate funding for debt service.  All 
other operational budget amendments that involve transfers between line items or expenditure 
categories require approval by the Town Manager. 



 

iii 

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS FOR THE YEAR  
 
Oro Valley’s Strategic Plan was revised during FY 2012/13 and is grounded in the vision expressed 
in the Council-adopted and voter-ratified Oro Valley General Plan.  While the Strategic Plan guides 
short-term decision-making, the General Plan provides a long-term (up to 20 years) direction 
regarding the growth, development and redevelopment of the community.  Oro Valley is a 
community defined by the highest standard of environmental integrity, education, infrastructure, 
services and public safety.  It is a community of people working together to create the Town’s future 
with a government that is responsive to residents and ensures the long-term financial stability of the 
Town.  The four main focus areas in the Strategic Plan are listed below.  Also shown below are the 
Town’s accomplishments in these areas during FY 2012/13. 
 

 Fiscal Responsibility 
The Town Council and management are focused on efforts to maintain long-term 
financial health through diversified revenue sources while investing in community 
initiatives. 
 
o Achieved financial sustainability by reducing recurring expenditures through vacancy 

savings (approximately $1.8 million) 
o Successfully transitioned Library Services to Pima County Library District 
o Continued successful partnership with the Regional Transportation Authority (RTA) 

for expanded public transit services 
o Successfully annexed 107 acres known as the Oracle/Ina area 
o Surplus auction program generated over $175,000 in revenue 
o Completed the issuance of Town of Oro Valley Excise Tax Refunding Obligations, 

Series 2013, resulting in net present value savings of nearly $460,000 
o Expanded capital improvement program (CIP) from a 5-year program to a 15-year 

program 
o Successfully transitioned to a self-funded model for medical insurance coverage for 

FY 2012/13 resulting in estimated annual savings of over $300,000 
o Issued more than 200 single family residential building permits in FY 2012/13, a 

275% increase over FY 2011/12 
o Developed a program using the Arizona Department of Corrections (ADC) crew to 

assist with town-wide right-of-way vegetation maintenance and minor repairs on 
Town equipment and fleet 

o Commenced new “hybrid” legal management system with use of outside counsel 
o Obtained Nutro Company grant for dog park improvements at James D. Kriegh Park 

 
 Communication 

The Town will ensure residents are educated about and engaged in moving community 
initiatives forward. 
 
o Completed upgrade to Granicus system, which provides the public with meeting 

information and video and audio recordings of Council and Board meetings 
o Adopted new two-year Oro Valley Strategic Plan 
o Completed Public Participation Plan for the General Plan Update 
o Completed spring and fall community academies providing training to Boards, 

Commissions and town residents 
o Received first ever Popular Annual Financial Reporting (PAFR) Award from the 

Government Finance Officers Association 
o Initiated new customer service training module for Town employees 
o Expanded capabilities of the Constant Contact email subscription service for 

constituents
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o Implemented online Court Calendar thus improving communication with constituents 
o Developed and unveiled a new Town brand of “It’s in our nature” 
o Launched a new Town website and improved online Business Navigator 

 
 Economic Development 

The Town Council and management are focused on attracting and retaining globally-
competitive high technology and bioscience employers.  Additionally, the Town is 
focused on developing recreation and cultural opportunities to promote tourism and 
support employee attraction and retention.   
 
o Expanded partnerships with Visit Tucson (formerly Metropolitan Tucson Convention 

and Visitors Bureau) and the Greater Oro Valley Chamber of Commerce 
o Approved the Economic Expansion Zone (EEZ) for Innovation Park 
o Completed draft Development Capability Report addressing Town future 

development capacity 
o Successfully retained Securaplane, a leading supplier of avionics products for 

business, commercial and military aircraft, who is expanding into a 55,000 sq ft 
building along Innovation Park 

o Hosted numerous regional and state championship swim meets at new Oro Valley 
Aquatic Center 

o Oro Valley named Playful City Community USA 2013 for third consecutive year 
o Oro Valley named “2013 Best Place to Raise Kids in Arizona” by Bloomberg 

Businessweek 
o Launched virtual art gallery and public art tours 
o Completed design on the Canada del Oro Shared Use Path project, a key element to 

supporting our bicycle-friendly community 
 

 Community Services 
The Town Council and management are focused on providing services to enhance 
residents’ quality of life.   

 
o Implemented new business licensing application, which will increase efficiency, 

reduce costs and provide greater and more reliable economic data 

o Approved $2.1 million from General Fund contingency reserves to bury utility lines 
for preservation of natural beauty and scenic corridors 

o Approved development of an archery range and two archery walking courses at 
Naranja Park 

o Created Town’s first Oro Valley Youth Advisory Council 
o Sun Shuttle Dial-a-Ride service celebrated its first year of service with ridership 

exceeding 30,000 passenger trips 

o Completed construction of the Lambert Lane Widening Project 
o Increased employee participation in the Town’s Wellness Initiative 

o Completed $5 million renovation and expansion of the Oro Valley Aquatic Center at 
James D. Kriegh Park 

o Continued partnership with the Southern Arizona Arts & Cultural Alliance (SAACA) 
to provide the 2nd Thursday Concert Series at Oro Valley Marketplace 

o Completed improvements at Steam Pump Ranch historic property, including new 
restroom, new north main gate entrance and roof repair on Leiber House 

o Installed new shade structure over playgrounds at James D. Kriegh Park 

o Dispose-A-Med program awarded Common Ground Celebration Award by 
Metropolitan Pima Alliance 

o Membership in Adopt-A-Business Program includes 155 active businesses 
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o Citizen Volunteer Assistants Program (CVAP) members contributed 14,455 
volunteer hours valued in excess of $320,000 

o Oro Valley Water Utility replaced 2,498 water meters under the Meter Replacement 
Program and Advanced Metering Infrastructure Project 

o Oro Valley Water Utility performed 144 residential water use audits, reducing water 
usage and costs for customers 

o Oro Valley Water Utility completed the Tangerine Hills valve and hydrant 
replacement project 

 
 
ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK  
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town 
operates. 
 
Fiscal year 2012/13 in Oro Valley saw continued economic progress and recovery with year-over-
year increases in most of the Town’s revenue categories.  The Town continues to provide services 
and programs without a property tax to fund operations and, therefore, is dependent upon state shared 
revenues and local sales tax as major sources of operating revenue.  These sources accounted for 
approximately 80% of total General Fund revenue for FY 2012/13. 
 
Most of the major local sales tax categories experienced year-over-year increases compared to 
amounts collected in FY 2011/12 as discussed below: 
 

 Retail tax collections totaled $5.2 million for FY 12/13, up 4.6%, or $228,000 over last fiscal 
year. 

 Restaurant and bar tax collections totaled just over $1.0 million for the fiscal year, flat to last 
year’s collections. 

 Construction sales tax collections totaled $2.9 million for the fiscal year, up 58%, or $1.1 
million over last fiscal year. 

 Utility tax collections totaled $2.8 million for the fiscal year, up 17%, or $409,000 over last 
fiscal year. 

 
The chart below is a look at the past five years’ local sales tax activity by category: 
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In FY 2012/13, the Town received $9.0 million for state shared revenues in the General Fund, up 
11%, or $903,000 over last fiscal year.  The trend chart below depicts the expected upward 
movement of both of these revenue categories for next fiscal year: 
 

                        
 
 
Other actions have been taken by the Town Council and management over the past several years to 
significantly reduce the Town’s recurring expenditures in order to achieve a structurally balanced 
budget.  Expenditures have been reduced due to the following: 
 

 Transfer of Library Services operations to the Pima County Library District, saving the Town 
approximately $600,000 annually 

 Approximately $1.8 million in vacancy savings realized over the last two fiscal years 
 Refinanced excise tax refunding obligations to achieve net present value savings of 

approximately $460,000 
 Transitioned to self-funded model for employee medical insurance coverage, eliminating 

profit paid to medical provider and implemented enhanced wellness program 
 Expanded volunteer program throughout Town of Oro Valley 
 Partnered with Tucson Water for delivery of our Central Arizona Project (CAP) water 

through their system 
 Continued to partner with the Regional Transportation Authority (RTA) to provide expanded 

dial-a-ride transit services to the community at a lower subsidy cost to the Town 
 
Future Focus 
 
By achieving the significant savings outlined above, along with a more positive revenue picture 
projected for FY 2013/14, the Town will focus its efforts on investing in the very elements of our 
operation that provide the highest return on investment for the future – our employees, our 
infrastructure and assets, economic development opportunities and quality-of-life programs and 
services for the community.   
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These strategies will be fulfilled a number of different ways as highlighted below:   
 

 Employee performance merit and step increases have been budgeted for FY 2013/14, along 
with funding for employee reclassifications and funding for a salary market study.  

 FY 2013/14 will be the second year in the Town’s effort to return to a regular fleet 
replacement schedule.  Not only does the budget include funding to replace several aged 
vehicles in the fleet, it also includes $108,000 set aside as a reserve for future replacement of 
the new vehicles purchased during FY 2012/13.  Also included is funding for the appropriate 
replacement of computers and other technology that is critical to maintaining smooth 
administrative functions.   

 The FY 2013/14 budget includes funding for the Oro Valley Water Utility to continue 
progress on the installation of Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) communications 
equipment and the replacement of approximately 3,700 aging meters with new electronic 
meters. 

 Funding has also been included in the FY 2013/14 budget to address the growing need for an 
expanded property and evidence storage facility for the Police Department to remediate a 
lack of proper storage space and provide a safer working environment for staff assigned to 
this area.  

 Addressing the Town’s growing technology needs will be a focus in the FY 2013/14 budget 
with funding dedicated to replacing the Town’s permitting system, telephone system and 
updating of the Microsoft Office Suite to a consistent version town-wide.   

 The FY 2013/14 has dedicated funding for the first full year of operations at the expanded 
Oro Valley Aquatic Center.  The Town will continue to aggressively recruit large-scale 
events, which will generate increased tourism and economic activity in our community. 

 
Additionally, annexation and the expansion of arts and culture will continue to be top priorities in the 
future.  Extensive annexation outreach has been conducted and will increase in the coming year as 
more resources are allocated to this area. 
 
The Town also continues to maintain strong investment grade ratings on its outstanding excise tax 
bonds, rated “AA-“ by both Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.  This is largely achieved by the 
Council’s goal of continuing to diversify the Town’s revenue base and maintaining strong fund 
balance reserves in the General Fund, currently at $13.1 million, or 46% of FY 2013/14 adopted 
expenditures of $28.5 million.  This is well above the Council-adopted policy threshold of 25% of 
adopted expenditures.  
 
AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
Award.  The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Oro 
Valley for its comprehensive annual financial report for the year ended June 30, 2012.  This was the 
nineteenth consecutive year that the Town has achieved this prestigious award.  In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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Acknowledgments.  The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have 
been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance 
Department who assisted and contributed in its preparation.  We thank the Mayor and members of 
the Town Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the 
Town in a responsible and progressive manner. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Greg Caton, ICMA-CM Stacey Lemos, CPA 
Town Manager             Finance Director      
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council 
Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 
(Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Town’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
As described in Note 1, the Town implemented the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, for the year ended June 30, 2013, which represents a change in accounting 
principle.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 14 and budgetary comparison information on pages 64 through 66 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, combining and individual fund 
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The combining and individual fund financial 
statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole.  The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23, 2013, 
on our consideration of Town of Oro Valley, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Oro Valley, Arizona’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C. 
CPAs and Business Consultants 
 
October 23, 2013 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
(Required Supplementary Information) 
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As management of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona (Town), we offer readers of the Town’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, 
which can be found in the introductory section of this report. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

 
The financial statements which follow the Management’s Discussion and Analysis provide those 
significant key financial highlights for 2012-13 as follows. 
 
 The Town’s total net position of governmental activities decreased $456,330 to $157.1 million 

and business-type activities increased $3.6 million to $68.3 million representing 70 percent and 
30 percent respectively, of the total net position of $222.5 million. 

 
 General revenues from governmental activities accounted for $24.1 million in revenue, or 65 

percent of all revenues from governmental activities.  Program specific revenues in the form of 
charges for services and grants and contributions accounted for $13.2 million or 35 percent of 
total governmental activities revenues.  The Town had $17.6 million of program revenues and 
$5,471 in general revenues related to business-type activities. 

 
 The Town had $35.2 million in expenses related to governmental activities, a decrease of less 

than one percent from the prior fiscal year.  The Town had $14.0 million in expenses related to 
business-type activities, an increase of 11 percent from the prior fiscal year. 

 
 Among major funds, the General Fund had $28.1 million in revenues, which primarily consisted 

of sales taxes and intergovernmental revenues.  The total expenditures of the General Fund were 
$25.2 million.  The General Fund’s fund balance increased from $11.4 million to $13.1 million. 

 
 The Highway User Revenue Fund had $3.9 million in revenues, which primarily consisted of 

intergovernmental revenues.  The total expenditures of the Highway User Revenue Fund were 
$3.4 million. 

 
 The Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fee Fund had $3.5 million in revenues, which 

primarily consisted of intergovernmental revenues.  The total expenditures of the Townwide 
Roadway Development Impact Fee Fund were $4.3 million. 

 
 The Aquatic Center Project Fund’s fund balance decreased from $3.1 million to $66,638 due 

to the construction of the expanded Aquatic Center at James D. Kriegh Park. 
 

 The Water Fund operating revenues of $14.8 million exceeded operating expenses of $11.1 
million.  The increase in net position of $3.7 million was primarily due to revenues from charges 
for services exceeding operating expenses. 
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic 
financial statements.  The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources with the difference between the two reported as net 
position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated 
absences). 
 
In the government-wide financial statements the Town’s activities are presented in the following 
categories: 

 
 Governmental activities – Most of the Town’s basic services are included here, such as 

general government, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation.  Sales 
taxes, intergovernmental, and charges for services finance most of these activities. 

 
 Business-type activities – The services provided by the Town included here are water and 

stormwater utilities.  The services are primarily financed through user fees and charges. 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.  All of the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories:  governmental 
funds and proprietary funds. 
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Concl’d) 
 

Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in 
evaluating the Town’s near-term financing requirements. 
 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
Town’s near-term financing decision.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide 
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 
 

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the 
General, Highway User Revenue (HURF), Oracle Road Debt Service, Townwide Roadway 
Development Impact Fees, and Aquatic Center Project Funds, all of which are considered to 
be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements and schedules. 
 

Proprietary funds.  The Town of Oro Valley maintains two types of proprietary funds.  
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements.  The Town of Oro Valley uses enterprise funds to 
account for its Oro Valley Water Utility and Stormwater Drainage Utility.  The Town uses 
internal service funds to account for its fleet maintenance services and to finance its self- 
insured employee health benefits.  Because these services predominately benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, the internal service funds have been included within 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

 
Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town’s budget 
process.  The Town adopts an annual expenditure budget for all governmental funds.  A schedule 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actual has been provided 
for the General Fund and major Special Revenue Fund as required supplementary information. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In 
the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $225.4 million as of the current fiscal year 
end. 
 
The largest portion of the Town’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure, vehicles, 
machinery and equipment and construction in progress), less any related outstanding debt used to 
acquire those assets.  The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the Town’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
The following table presents a summary of the Town’s net position for the fiscal years ended    
June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012. 
 

  

2013 
Governmental 

Activities 

 2012 
Governmental 

Activities 

2013 
Business-type 

Activities 

2012 
Business-type 

Activities  2013 Total 2012 Total 
Current and other assets  $  27,802,041  $   29,405,939 $     22,603,794 $        22,316,206 $ 50,405,835 $ 51,722,145
Capital assets, net  146,102,837 144,898,110 97,911,736 97,550,941  244,014,573 242,449,051

Total assets, net  173,904,878 174,304,049 120,515,530 119,867,147  294,420,408 294,171,196
    
Current and other liabilities  3,438,012 2,882,086 2,842,130 3,006,139  6,280,142 5,888,225
Long-term liabilities  13,323,348 13,822,115 49,369,457 52,123,740  62,692,805 65,945,855

Total liabilities  16,761,360 16,704,201 52,211,587 55,129,879  68,972,947 71,834,080
       
Net investment in capital assets  134,512,094 135,336,862 48,802,267 45,669,488  183,314,361 181,006,350
Restricted  3,730,312 11,454,390   3,730,312 11,454,390
Unrestricted  18,901,112 10,808,596 19,501,676 19,067,780  38,402,788 29,876,376

Total net position  $157,143,518  $ 157,599,848 $    68,303,943 $        64,737,268 $225,447,461 $222,337,116
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont’d) 
 
The Town’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net 
results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital 
assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.  The following are significant current year 
transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of Net position.   
 

 The addition of $6.9 million in business-type activities capital assets through 
improvements to the existing water system. 

 The addition of $11.7 million in governmental activities capital assets, mostly consisting 
of street improvements and construction of the aquatic center. 

 The decrease of $2.8 million in business-type activities long-term debt was due mainly to 
the issuance of $6.4 million in revenue refunding bonds to refund $6.3 million of the 
2003 Revenue Refunding Bonds; and annual debt service payments of $2.9 million. 

 The conveyance of the Oro Valley Branch Library to Pima County, which resulted in a 
net loss of $2.6 million 

 
Changes in net position.  The Town’s total revenues for the current fiscal year were $54.9 
million.  The total cost of all programs and services was $49.2 million.  The following table 
presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 
June 30, 2012. 
 

 

2013
Governmental 

Activities

2012
Governmental 

Activities

2013
Business-type 

Activities

2012 
 Business-type 

Activities  
2013  
Total

2012 
Total

Revenues:  
Program revenues:      
Charges for services  $     5,007,938 $     3,524,887  $  17,546,000  $    16,569,557 $  22,553,938  $  20,094,444
Operating grants and contributions  5,318,097 5,247,844    5,318,097  5,247,844 
Capital grants and contributions  2,920,335 7,107,063  48,871  245,607 2,969,206  7,352,670 

General revenues:        
Sales taxes  14,241,065 12,799,678    14,241,065  12,799,678 
Franchise taxes  539,477 525,427    539,477  525,427 
Unrestricted state shared revenues  9,048,365 8,145,065    9,048,365  8,145,065 
Investment earnings  265,787 189,606  5,471  167,106 271,258  356,712 

Total revenues  37,341,064 37,539,570  17,600,342  16,982,270 54,941,406  54,521,840 
Expenses:        

General government  9,861,131 9,961,376    9,861,131  9,961,376 
Public safety  12,770,224 12,349,948    12,770,224  12,349,948 
Highways and streets  9,255,004 9,339,062    9,255,004  9,339,062 
Culture and recreation  2,783,633 3,227,895    2,783,633  3,227,895 
Interest on long-term debt  522,917 654,262    522,917  654,262 
Water   13,047,373  11,984,829 13,047,373  11,984,829 
Stormwater drainage   983,975  636,966 983,975  636,966 

Total expenses  35,192,909  35,532,543  14,031,348  12,621,795 49,224,257  48,154,338 
Transfers  2,319    (2,319)      
Special item  (2,606,804)     (2,606,804) 
Change in net position  (456,330) 2,007,027 3,566,675 4,360,475 3,110,345 6,367,502 
Net position, beginning  157,599,848 155,592,821 64,737,268 60,376,793 222,337,116 215,969,614 
Net position, ending  $ 157,143,518 $ 157,599,848 $  68,303,943 $     64,737,268 $225,447,461 $222,337,116 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Concl’d) 
 
Total revenues increased $419,566, or less than one percent.  The increase of $1.4 million in sales tax 
was largely due to increases in collections from construction, $1.1 million, and utility taxes, 
$394,000. Capital grants and contributions decreased by $4.4 million due to discontinued funding for 
loan payments on the ADOT loan which was extinguished in the prior fiscal year.  Governmental 
activities charges for services increased by $1.5 million due to increases in construction related 
revenues such as residential and commercial building permits, $600,000 and development impact 
fees, $571,000.  The Water Utility fund had an increase of $1.0 million in charges for services 
primarily due to development impact fee collections. 
 
Governmental and Business-type activities.  The following table presents the cost of the Town’s 
major functional activities.  The table also shows each function’s net cost (total cost less charges for 
services generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs).  The 
net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the State and Town’s taxpayers by each of 
these functions. 
 

 2013  2012 

Governmental Activities 
Total 

Expenses 
Net (Expense)/

Revenue  
Total 

Expenses 
Net (Expense)/

Revenue 
General government $    9,861,131 $    (5,938,649) $     9,961,376 $    (6,560,335)
Public safety 12,770,224 (11,749,770) 12,349,948 (11,126,636)
Highways and streets 9,255,004 (1,552,733) 9,339,062 1,228,958 
Culture and recreation 2,783,633 (2,182,470) 3,227,895 (2,540,474)
Interest on long-term debt 522,917 (522,917) 654,262 (654,262)
Total $  35,192,909 $  (21,946,539) $   35,532,543 $  (19,652,749)

        
Business-type Activities      

Water $  13,047,373 $      3,726,231  $    11,984,829 $       4,037,800 
Stormwater drainage 983,975 (162,708) 636,966 155,569 
Total $  14,031,348 $      3,563,523  $    12,621,795 $       4,193,369 

 
 The cost of all governmental activities this year was $35.2 million.  The decrease of $339,634 

from the prior year was due primarily to operation and maintenance cost savings. 

 The cost of all business-type activities this year was $14.0 million.  The increase of $1.4 
million from the prior year was primarily due to the following:  CAP water delivery charges, 
$344,000, water purchased for resale, $408,000 and an overall increase in operational costs in 
the Water Utility Fund.  In addition, the Stormwater Fund had increased administrative 
service costs. 

 Federal and State governments, developer contributions, and charges for services subsidized 
certain governmental programs and business-type programs with revenues of $30.8 million. 

 Net cost of governmental activities of $21.9 million was financed by general revenues, which 
are made up of primarily sales taxes and state shared revenues of $23.3 million. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful 
in assessing the Town’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of the Town’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
 
The financial performance of the Town as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds.  As the 
Town completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $21.0 
million, a decrease of $2.4 million.  This was primarily due to expended proceeds from the 
issuance of $2.6 million in revenue bonds for the Town’s aquatic center project. 
 
The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Town.  The fund balance increased by 
$1.7 million in the General Fund to $13.1 million for the current fiscal year due to an increase in 
local sales tax and license and permit revenues and decreased expenditures related to personnel 
vacancy savings. 
 
The fund balance of the Highway User Revenue Fund showed an increase of $500,384 to $3.5 
million for the current fiscal year due to an increase in local sales tax and a decrease in 
expenditures for street projects. 
 
The Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees Fund showed a decrease of $767,559 to $1.5 
million for the current fiscal year due to planned use of fund balance for the Lambert Lane road 
widening project. 
 
The Aquatic Center Project Fund showed a decrease of $3.1 million to $66,638 for the current 
fiscal year due to utilization of revenue bond proceeds for the Town’s aquatic center project. 
 
Proprietary funds.  Net position of the Enterprise Funds at the end of the year amounted to 
$68.3 million.  The increase of $3.6 million from the prior fiscal year was primarily due to 
operating income of $3.7 million from the Water Utility Fund. 
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS  
 
There were no amendments to the Town of Oro Valley’s fiscal year 2012-13 operating and 
capital budget.  A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to the 
Town’s actual financial activity for the General Fund is provided in this report as required 
supplementary information.  The significant variances are summarized as follows: 
 

 The favorable variance of $885,782 in sales tax revenue was primarily a result of 
increased sales tax collections from construction. 

 The favorable variance of $2.5 million in general government expenditures was a result 
of personnel vacancy savings and operational cost savings. 

 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets.  At year end, the Town had invested $244.0 million in capital assets (net of 
accumulated depreciation), including buildings, facilities, vehicles, computers, equipment, and 
infrastructure assets.  This amount represents a net increase of $1.6 million from last year.  This 
was primarily due to the construction of the Aquatic Center at James D. Kriegh Park and 
expansion of the Town’s water system.  Total depreciation expense for the year was $10.5 
million. 
 
The following schedule presents capital asset balances for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 
and June 30, 2012. 
 

Governmental Activities  
As of  

June 30, 2013
As of  

June 30, 2012 
Land  $   18,878,468 $  18,878,468 
Infrastructure  153,945,765 152,734,484 
Buildings and improvements  26,549,988 24,330,218 
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles  11,500,475 11,328,666 
Construction in progress  9,943,494 6,083,031 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (74,715,353) (68,456,757)

Total  $ 146,102,837 $144,898,110 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Concl’d) 
 

Business-type Activities  
As of  

June 30, 2013
As of  

June 30, 2012 
Land  $     2,410,660  $    2,410,660 
Water rights  8,534,490  8,534,490 
Water system  112,874,420  107,415,415 
Stormwater system  2,779,503  2,779,503 
Equipment and vehicles  4,387,633  3,894,930 
Construction in progress   2,572,273 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (33,074,970) (30,056,330)

Total  $   97,911,736  $  97,550,941 
 
Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 5. 
 
Debt Administration.  At year end, the Town had $58.5 million in long-term debt outstanding, 
$3.4 million due within one year.  The following table presents a summary of the Town’s 
outstanding long-term debt for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012. 
 

  Governmental Activities 
  2013  2012 

Revenue bonds $       9,103,050 $      9,424,960 
Special assessment bonds 2,435,000 2,685,000 
Total $     11,538,050 $     12,109,960 

     

  Business-type Activities 
  2013  2012 

Revenue bonds  $     41,386,950  $     43,843,790 
Loan payable  5,575,041  5,893,122 
  $     46,961,991  $     49,736,912 

 
State statutes currently limit the amount of general obligation debt a Town may issue to 20 
percent of its total assessed valuation for water, sewer, lights, open space preserves, parks, 
playgrounds and recreational facilities.  The current debt limitation for the Town is $118.6 
million.   
 
The Town of Oro Valley has a bond rating of “AA-” rating from both Standard & Poor’s and 
Fitch Ratings on its excise tax revenue bonds and an “AA” rating from Standard & Poor’s on 
outstanding water revenue bonds. 
 
Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 6 through 10. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES  
 

 The unemployment rate for the Town of Oro Valley is currently 6.4%.  Pima County’s 
and the State of Arizona’s unemployment rates are 7.6% and 8.5%, respectively. 

 
 The Town’s secondary assessed valuation for the current year is $592,761,968. 

 
 Single family residential (SFR) building permits issued in this fiscal year totaled 217, as 

compared to 56 SFR building permits issued last fiscal year.  Projections for SFR 
building permits are 180 for fiscal year 2013-14. 
 

The adopted combined operating and capital expenditure budget for fiscal year 2013-14 totals 
$93.9 million, a decrease of 1.6% over last year’s budget of $95.4 million.  This decrease is 
primarily attributed to the completion of the Oro Valley Aquatics Center.  The budget for fiscal 
year 2013-14 continues to place emphasis on the following:  investing in our employees and 
infrastructure assets, streamlining service delivery, increasing operating efficiencies through 
regional partnerships, and capitalizing on economic development opportunities that provide a 
significant return on investment for the Town. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to demonstrate the Town’s 
accountability for the resources it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need 
additional information, contact the Finance Department, Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, 11000 
North La Cañada Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona  85737. 
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ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Special assessments
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred bond charges
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, depreciable (net)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Interest payable
Sales tax payable
Unearned revenue
Claims payable
Customer deposits payable
Compensated absences
Capital leases payable
Loans payable
Special assessment bonds
Revenue bonds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Capital leases payable
Loans payable
Special assessment bonds
Revenue bonds

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Public safety
Capital outlay
Debt service

Unrestricted
Total net position

Governmental 
Activities

$ 21,131,631
1,011,408

251,387
2,577,528
2,435,000

67,695
27,474,649

327,392
28,821,962

117,280,875
146,430,229
173,904,878

1,761,996
858,373
149,282

 
289,105
186,728
87,134

105,394
1,351,432

 
 

260,000
444,000

5,493,444

381,173
 
 

2,175,000
8,711,743

11,267,916
16,761,360

134,512,094

1,014,490
1,940,759

775,063
18,901,112

$ 157,143,518

Business-type 
Activities

$ 17,337,908
 

2,466,621
 
 
 

19,804,529

2,799,265
10,945,150
86,966,586

100,711,001
120,515,530

500,755
115,383

1,009,041
938,509

 
 
 

278,442
171,592
91,713

281,954
 

2,406,000
5,793,389

88,396
93,594

5,293,087
 

40,943,121
46,418,198
52,211,587

48,802,267

 
 
 

19,501,676
$ 68,303,943

Total

$ 38,469,539
1,011,408
2,718,008
2,577,528
2,435,000

67,695
47,279,178

3,126,657
39,767,112

204,247,461
247,141,230
294,420,408

2,262,751
973,756

1,158,323
938,509
289,105
186,728
87,134

383,836
1,523,024

91,713
281,954
260,000

2,850,000
11,286,833

469,569
93,594

5,293,087
2,175,000

49,654,864
57,686,114
68,972,947

183,314,361

1,014,490
1,940,759

775,063
38,402,788

$ 225,447,461

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Position

Functions/Programs
Primary Government

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Stormwater drainage

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Expenses
 
 

$ 9,861,131
12,770,224
9,255,004
2,783,633

522,917
35,192,909

 
13,047,373

983,975
14,031,348

$ 49,224,257

Charges for 
Services

 
 

$ 3,740,046
45,346

1,052,581
169,965

 
5,007,938

 
16,732,600

813,400
17,546,000

$ 22,553,938

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
 
 

$ 182,436
975,108

3,756,584
403,969

 
5,318,097

 
 
 
 

$ 5,318,097

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
 
 

$  
 

2,893,106
27,229

 
2,920,335

 
41,004
7,867

48,871
$ 2,969,206

Governmental 
Activities

 
 

$ (5,938,649)
(11,749,770)
(1,552,733)
(2,182,470)

(522,917)
(21,946,539)

 
 
 
 

(21,946,539)

General revenues:
Taxes:

Sales taxes
Franchise taxes

Unrestricted state shared revenues
Investment earnings

Transfers
Special item - Capital asset conveyance

Total general revenues, transfers and special items

Changes in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

 
 

14,241,065
539,477

9,048,365
265,787

2,319
(2,606,804)
21,490,209

(456,330)

157,599,848

$ 157,143,518

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Page 20
The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position

Business-type 
Activities

 
 

$  
 
 
 
 
 

 
3,726,231
(162,708)
3,563,523
3,563,523

Totals
 
 

$ (5,938,649)
(11,749,770)
(1,552,733)
(2,182,470)

(522,917)
(21,946,539)

 
3,726,231
(162,708)
3,563,523

(18,383,016)

 
 
 
 
 

5,471
(2,319)

 
3,152

3,566,675

64,737,268

$ 68,303,943

 
 

14,241,065
539,477

9,048,365
271,258

 
(2,606,804)
21,493,361

3,110,345

222,337,116

$ 225,447,461
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Special assessments
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Sales tax payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits payable

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

General Fund

$ 13,123,264
1,011,408

251,387
479,752

 
332,635
67,695

$ 15,266,141

$ 606,554
791,973
149,282
289,105

 
186,728
105,394

2,129,036

 
 

1,608,035
11,529,070
13,137,105

$ 15,266,141

HURF

$ 3,953,094
 
 

250,427
 
 
 

$ 4,203,521

$ 619,356
66,400

 
 
 
 
 

685,756

 
3,517,765

 
 

3,517,765

$ 4,203,521

Oracle Road 
Debt Service

$ 149
 
 
 

2,435,000
 
 

$ 2,435,149

$  
 
 
 
 

2,435,000
 

2,435,000

149
 
 
 

149

$ 2,435,149

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
 BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
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The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Townwide 
Roadway 

Development 
Impact Fees

$  
 
 

1,847,349
 
 
 

$ 1,847,349

$ 53,277
 
 
 

332,635
 
 

385,912

1,461,437
 
 
 

1,461,437

$ 1,847,349

Aquatic Center 
Project

$ 405,944
 
 
 
 
 
 

$ 405,944

$ 339,306
 
 
 
 
 
 

339,306

66,638
 
 
 

66,638

$ 405,944

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

$ 2,948,100
 
 
 
 
 
 

$ 2,948,100

$ 96,959
 
 
 
 
 
 

96,959

2,202,088
649,053

 
 

2,851,141

$ 2,948,100

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

$ 20,430,551
1,011,408

251,387
2,577,528
2,435,000

332,635
67,695

$ 27,106,204

$ 1,715,452
858,373
149,282
289,105
332,635

2,621,728
105,394

6,071,969

3,730,312
4,166,818
1,608,035

11,529,070
21,034,235

$ 27,106,204
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Total governmental fund balances 21,034,235$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 220,818,190$      
Less accumulated depreciation (74,715,353) 146,102,837       

Special assessments receivable are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds. 2,435,000           

Deferred items related to the issuance of bonds are amortized over the life of
the associated issuance in the government-wide statements but not
reported in the funds.

Deferred bond charges 327,392
Deferred bond premium (52,693) 274,699              

The Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of
insurance to the individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal
Service Funds are included in the Statement of Net Position. 567,402              

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore 
are not reported in the funds.

Special assessment bonds (2,435,000)
Revenue bonds (9,103,050)
Compensated absences (1,732,605)          (13,270,655)        

Net position of governmental activities 157,143,518$    

The notes to the basic financial statements are integral part of this statement.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013
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Revenues:
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Development impact fees
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees & permits
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Charges for services
Contributions and donations
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -

General government
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Debt service -
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

General Fund

$ 12,713,777
539,477

 
 

11,120,347
1,745,974

202,035
1,400,745

 
205,634
207,879

28,135,868

 
 

8,825,094
12,276,845
1,069,458
2,468,129

522,191
 
 
 

25,161,717

2,974,151

 
106,629

(1,345,324)
(1,238,695)

1,735,456

11,401,649

$ 13,137,105

HURF

$ 738,492
 
 
 

2,842,721
67,973

 
229,493

 
25,007
16,813

3,920,499

 
 
 
 

2,444,021
 

976,144
 
 
 

3,420,165

500,334

 
 
 
 

500,334

3,017,431

$ 3,517,765

Oracle Road 
Debt Service

$  
 
 

365,935
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

365,935

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

250,000
119,378
369,378

(3,443)

 
 
 
 

(3,443)

3,592

$ 149

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Townwide 
Roadway 

Development 
Impact Fees

$  
 

719,927
 

2,777,171
 
 
 
 

21,143
18,375

3,536,616

 
 
 
 
 
 

4,304,175
 
 
 

4,304,175

(767,559)

 
 
 
 

(767,559)

2,228,996

$ 1,461,437

Aquatic Center 
Project

$  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27,229
 
 

27,229

 
 
 
 
 
 

4,542,923
 
 
 

4,542,923

(4,515,694)

 
1,460,000

 
1,460,000

(3,055,694)

3,122,332

$ 66,638

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

$ 788,796
 

268,415
 

77,517
 

349,927
 
 

14,003
106,259

1,604,917

 
 

464,677
65,504

 
 

708,306
 

321,910
379,351

1,939,748

(334,831)

 
137,643

(656,629)
(518,986)

(853,817)

3,704,958

$ 2,851,141

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

$ 14,241,065
539,477
988,342
365,935

16,817,756
1,813,947

551,962
1,630,238

27,229
265,787
349,326

37,591,064

 
 

9,289,771
12,342,349
3,513,479
2,468,129

11,053,739
 

571,910
498,729

39,738,106

(2,147,042)

 
1,704,272

(2,001,953)
(297,681)

(2,444,723)

23,478,958

$ 21,034,235
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Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (2,444,723)$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the Statement of Activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 

Expenditures for capital assets 11,282,715$   
Less current year depreciation (7,471,184) 3,811,531       

Special assessment revenues in the Statement of Activities do not provide current financial resources 
and therefore are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. (250,000)         

Repayment of debt principal are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Revenue bond principal retirement 321,910          
Special assessment bond principal retirement 250,000          571,910          

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Amortization of deferred charges (24,188)           
Loss on conveyance of capital assets (2,606,804)      
Compensated absences (81,458)           (2,712,450)      

The Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of insurance to the 
individual funds. The changes in net position of the Internal Service Funds are reported with
governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. 567,402          

Change in net position in governmental activities (456,330)$       

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The notes to the basic financial statements are integral part of this statement.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

Page 31



Enterprise Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred bond charges
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, depreciable (net)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Interest payable
Customer deposits payable
Compensated absences
Capital leases payable
Loans payable
Revenue bonds
Claims payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Capital leases payable
Loans payable
Revenue bonds

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Water

$ 16,828,140
2,386,508

19,214,648

2,799,265
10,945,150
83,713,495
97,457,910

116,672,558

483,789
96,409

1,009,041
938,509
278,442
159,796

 
281,954

2,406,000
 

5,653,940

82,320
 

5,293,087
40,943,121
46,318,528
51,972,468

45,734,483
18,965,607

$ 64,700,090

Non-Major 
Enterprise Funds

$ 509,768
80,113

589,881

 
 

3,253,091
3,253,091
3,842,972

16,966
18,974

 
 
 

11,796
91,713

 
 
 

139,449

6,076
93,594

 
 

99,670
239,119

3,067,784
536,069

$ 3,603,853

Totals

$ 17,337,908
2,466,621

19,804,529

2,799,265
10,945,150
86,966,586

100,711,001
120,515,530

500,755
115,383

1,009,041
938,509
278,442
171,592
91,713

281,954
2,406,000

 
5,793,389

88,396
93,594

5,293,087
40,943,121
46,418,198
52,211,587

48,802,267
19,501,676

$ 68,303,943

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013
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The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Governmental 
Activities: 

Internal Service 
Funds

$ 701,080
 

701,080

 
 
 
 

701,080

46,544
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87,134
133,678

 
 
 
 
 

133,678

 
567,402

$ 567,402
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Enterprise Funds

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other
Self insurance premiums

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Costs of sales and services
Depreciation and amortization
Claims payments
Administrative fees
Reinsurance premiums

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Development impact fees
Connection fees
Investment earnings
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in net position

Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

Water

$ 14,748,328
25,058

 
14,773,386

8,192,830
2,915,506

 
 
 

11,108,336

3,665,050

1,253,055
706,159

 
(1,939,037)

20,177

3,685,227

41,004
 

(2,319)

3,723,912

60,976,178

$ 64,700,090

Non-Major 
Enterprise Funds

$ 750,460
62,940

 
813,400

861,391
122,584

 
 
 

983,975

(170,575)

 
 

5,471
 

5,471

(165,104)

7,867
 
 

(157,237)

3,761,090

$ 3,603,853

Totals

$ 15,498,788
87,998

 
15,586,786

9,054,221
3,038,090

 
 
 

12,092,311

3,494,475

1,253,055
706,159

5,471
(1,939,037)

25,648

3,520,123

48,871
 

(2,319)

3,566,675

64,737,268

$ 68,303,943

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Governmental 
Activities: 

Internal Service 
Funds

$ 638,787
 

2,157,847
2,796,634

638,787
 

1,402,981
57,000

430,464
2,529,232

267,402

 
 
 
 
 

267,402

 
300,000

 

567,402

 

$ 567,402

Page 35



Governmental 
Activities

Water
Non-Major 

Enterprise Funds Total
Internal Service 

Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 14,772,803$        797,366$          15,570,169$        638,787$          
Cash received from premiums 2,157,847         
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (5,637,239) (559,200) (6,196,439) (1,023,869)
Cash payments to employees for services (2,515,676) (281,305) (2,796,981) (81,593)
Cash payments for claims (1,315,847)

Net cash provided by (used for)  operating activities 6,619,888 (43,139) 6,576,749 375,325

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Interfund transfers (2,319) (2,319) 300,000
Connection fees 706,159 706,159
Grants received 157,132 157,132

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 703,840 157,132 860,972 300,000

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Development impact fees 1,253,055 1,253,055
Acquisition of capital assets (2,789,292) (64,158) (2,853,450)
Proceeds from loans 554,569 554,569
Principal paid on long-term debt (2,536,840) (95,512) (2,632,352)
Interest on long-term debt (2,188,825) (2,188,825)

Net cash used for capital and related 
financing activities (5,707,333) (159,670) (5,867,003)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 5,471 5,471

Net cash provided by investing activities 5,471 5,471

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,616,395 (40,206) 1,576,189 675,325

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 15,211,745 549,974 15,761,719 25,755

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 16,828,140$        509,768$          17,337,908$        701,080$          

Reconciliation of Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 3,665,050$          (170,575)$         3,494,475$          267,402$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,915,506 122,584 3,038,090
Change in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable (31,976) (16,034) (48,010)
Increase in accounts payable 18,441 13,762 32,203 20,789
Increase in claims payable 87,134
Increase in accrued payroll and employee benefits 1,949 8,948 10,897
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 19,525 (1,824) 17,701
Increase in deposits held for others 31,393 31,393

Total adjustments 2,954,838 127,436 3,082,274 107,923

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 6,619,888$          (43,139)$           6,576,749$          375,325$          

Non-cash capital and financing activities
Contribution of assets from developers 41,004$               7,867$              48,871$               
Capital lease agreeemnts 280,819 280,819

Enterprise Funds

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Page 36 The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The financial statements of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Town implemented the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources, and Net Position.  GASB Statement No. 63 establishes reporting guidance for 
certain elements of the financial statements which are distinct from assets and liabilities. 
 
The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 

 
The Town is a municipal entity governed by an elected mayor and council.  As required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial 
statements present the Town and its component units, entities for which the Town is 
considered to be financially accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate 
entities, are, in substance, part of the Town’s operations and so data from these units are 
combined with data of the Town, the primary government.  The blended component units 
presented have a June 30 year end. 

 
The financial reporting entity consists of a primary government and its component units.  A 
component unit is a legally separate entity that must be included in the reporting entity in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  The Town is a primary 
government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally 
independent of other state or local governments.  Furthermore, component units combined 
with the Town for financial statement presentation purposes, and the Town, are not included 
in any other governmental reporting entity.  Consequently, the Town’s financial statements 
include the funds of those organizational entities for which its elected governing body is 
financially accountable.  

 
Blended Component Unit – The financial reporting entity presented in these financial 
statements consists of the Town and one blended component unit.  This component unit, 
discussed below, is included in the Town’s reporting entity because of the significance of its 
operational relationship or financial relationship with the Town.  The component unit is 
governed by a board, substantially or wholly, comprised of the Town’s elected council.  
Separate financial statements are not prepared for the component unit on a stand-alone basis. 



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 
The Town of Oro Valley Municipal Property Corporation’s (MPC) Board of Directors 
consists of the three members which are appointed by the Town of Oro Valley Town Council.  
The MPC, a non-profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona, was 
originally formed for the purpose of assisting the Town in obtaining financing for acquiring 
the Cañada Hills and Rancho Vistoso water companies.  The Town has a contractual 
obligation for the repayment of the MPC’s Municipal Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, 
2005, and 2007.  The activity of the 2003 MPC is reported in the applicable water enterprise 
fund and the activity of the Series 2005 and 2007 MPC is reported in the applicable water 
enterprise and governmental funds.  All related receivables and payables between the Town 
and the MPC have been eliminated. 

 
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) present financial information about the Town as a whole.  The 
reported information includes all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town and its component 
units.  For the most part, the effect of internal activity has been removed from these 
statements.  These statements are to distinguish between the governmental and business-type 
activities of the Town.  Governmental activities normally are supported by sales taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, and are reported separately from business-type activities, which 
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.   

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges 
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Sales taxes, unrestricted state shared revenues, investment income and other items 
not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  
Major individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as 
separate columns in the fund financial statements. 



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or 
provider have been met.  As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated 
from the government-wide financial statements; however, the effects of interfund services 
provided and used between functions are reported as expenses and program revenues at 
amounts approximating their external exchange value. 

 
Fund Financial Statements – Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the Town considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, special assessments 
and investment income associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  
Grants and similar awards are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the grantor or provider have been met.  Miscellaneous revenue is not susceptible 
to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.  Grants and 
similar awards are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
the grantor or provider have been met.  Deferred revenue arises when resources are received 
by the Town before it has legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to 
meeting all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider. 
 
The Council adopts the budget at the fund level as a total amount of expenditures.  Financial 
control is administered by fund, with budgetary control for operating performance regulated at 
the departmental level, e.g., finance, economic development, police, and parks and recreation.  
The legal level of budgetary control (i.e. the level at which expenditures may not legally 
exceed appropriations) is at the fund level. 



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 
The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting 
funds by type.  Each major fund is presented in a separate column.  Non-major funds are 
aggregated and presented in a single column. 
 
The Town reports the following major governmental funds. 
 

General Fund – This fund accounts for all financial resources of the Town, except those 
required to be accounted for in other funds.   

 
Highway User Revenue Fund – This fund is used to account for the Town’s share of 
motor fuel tax revenues. 

 
Oracle Road Debt Service Fund – This fund accounts for the special assessment 
collections and payment of the outstanding Oracle Road bond issue. 
 
Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees Fund – This fund accounts for the 
collection and capital expenditures of the Townwide Roadway Development Impact 
Fees. 
 
Aquatic Center Project Fund – This fund accounts for construction of the expanded 
Aquatic Center at James D. Kriegh Park. 
 

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds. 
 

Water Fund – This fund accounts for the costs to operate, construct and finance the 
Town’s water system. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The 
principal operating revenues of the Town’s internal service fund are charges for health 
benefits and charges to user departments for fleet maintenance services.  The principal 
operating revenues of the Town’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for water and 
stormwater drainage services.  Operating expenses for these funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, depreciation, and amortization.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 
D. Cash and Investments 

 
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2013 were cash in bank and investments held by the 
County and State Treasurers. 
 
Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost.  Money market 
investments and participating interest investment contracts with a remaining maturity of one 
year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost.  All other investments are stated 
at fair value. 
 

E. Investment Income 
 

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of 
applicable investments.   

 
F. Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of 
interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from 
other funds.”  Interfund balances between governmental funds are eliminated on the 
Statement of Net Position 

 
All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.   

 
G. Prepaid Items 

 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  Prepaid 
items are recorded as expenses when consumed in the government-wide financial statements 
and as expenditures when purchased in the fund financial statements. 

 
H. Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
$5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year.  Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.  Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
 
Certain capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets Years 
Buildings 50
Improvements other than buildings 20-30 
Infrastructure 20-50
Vehicles 4-6
Machinery and equipment 7-20

 
I. Compensated Absences 

 
The Town’s employee annual and sick leave policies generally provide for granting annual 
and sick leave with pay.  Full-time employees accrue annual leave based on the number of 
years employed.  Employees who terminate employment shall be paid in a lump sum.  Full-
time employees accumulate sick leave at the rate of one work day per month.  Part-time 
employees whose normal week is twenty hours or more receive sick leave at half the rate of 
full-time employees.  Once an employee has exceeded 480 hours of accrued sick leave, one 
half of the sick leave balance in excess of the 480 hours shall be paid to the employee upon 
separation from employment.  The current and long-term liabilities, including related benefits, 
for accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported on the government-wide financial 
statements.  A liability for these amounts, including related benefits, is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee leave, 
resignations and retirements.  Generally, resources from the General Fund are used to pay for 
compensated absences. 

 
J. Long-term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable business-
type activities and proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concl’d) 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 
K. Interfund Activity 
 
Flows of cash from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as 
interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers between governmental funds are eliminated in the 
Statement of Activities.  Interfund transfers in the fund statements are reported as other 
financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in 
proprietary funds. 
 
L. Net Position Flow Assumption 
 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements the District applies 
restricted resources first when outlays are incurred for purposes for which either restricted or 
unrestricted amounts are available. 
 

M. Estimates 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying 
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

 
 
NOTE 2 – FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS 

 
Fund balances of the governmental funds are reported separately within classifications based 
on a hierarchy of the constraints placed on the use of those resources.  The classifications are 
based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be 
spent.  The classifications are nonspendable, restricted, and unrestricted, which includes 
committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance classifications. 
 
Nonspendable.  The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot 
be spent because they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 
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NOTE 2 – FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS (Cont’d) 
 
Restricted.  Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of 
resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or is imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed.  The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used 
only for the specific purposes imposed by formal action of the Town Council through the 
approval of a Town resolution.  Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other 
purpose unless the Town Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same 
type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts.  The committed fund 
balance reported in the Bed Tax Fund is to be used for local economic development 
purposes.  The committed fund balance reported in the Highway User Revenue Fund is to be 
used for roadway maintenance and preservation purposes. 
 
Assigned.  Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the 
Town for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance 
represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed.  In the General Fund, 
assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the Town Council or a management 
official delegated that authority by the formal Town Council action.  This authorization has 
been given to the Town Manager through the approval of Resolution No. (R)11-30, which 
amended the Town Financial and Budgetary Policies.  The assigned fund balance in the 
General Fund is set aside for the payout of compensated absences and for unemployment 
compensation claims. 
 
Unassigned.  Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other 
governmental funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance 
resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had be restricted, 
committed, or assigned. 

 
The Town applies restricted resources first when outlays are incurred for purposes for which 
either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available.  
Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by 
assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for 
which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 
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NOTE 2 – FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS (Concl’d) 
 
The table below provides detail of the major components of the Town’s fund balance 
classifications at year end. 
 

  
General 

Fund  

Highway 
User 

Revenue 
Fund

Oracle Road 
Debt Service 

Fund

Townwide 
Roadway 

Development 
Impact Fees  

Aquatic 
Center 
Project 
Fund 

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds
Fund Balances: 

Restricted: 
Debt service $ $ $             149 $ $ $         774,914
Capital projects 1,461,437 66,638 412,684
Public safety 1,014,490

Committed 3,517,765 649,053
Assigned 1,608,035  
Unassigned 11,529,070 

Total fund balances $ 13,137,105 $  3,517,765 $             149 $       1,461,437 $      66,638 $      2,851,141
 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS  

 
A.R.S. authorize the Town to invest public monies in obligations of the U.S. Government 
and its agencies, obligations of the State and certain local government subdivisions, interest-
bearing savings accounts and certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, 
certain obligations of U.S. corporations, and certain other securities.  The statutes do not 
include any requirements for credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, 
interest rate risk, or foreign currency risk for the Town’s investments. 
 
The State Treasurer’s pools are external investment pools, the Local Government Investment 
Pool (Pool 5) and Local Government Investment Pool-Government (Pool 7), with no 
regulatory oversight.  The pools are not required to register (and are not registered) with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission.  The activity and performance of the pools are 
reviewed monthly by the State Board of Investment.  The fair value of each participant’s 
position in the State Treasurer investment pools approximates the value of the participant’s 
shares in the pool and the participants’ shares are not identified with specific investments.  
No regulatory oversight is provided for the County Treasurer’s investment pool and that 
pool’s structure does not provide for shares. 

 
The County Treasurer’s pool is an external investment pool with no regulatory oversight.  
The pool is not required to register (and is not registered) with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  The fair value of each participants’ position in the County Treasurer 
investment pool approximates the value of the participants’ shares in the pool and the 
participants’ shares are not identified with specific investments. 
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NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits.  Custodial Credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank 
failure the Town’s deposits may not be returned to the Town.  The Town does not have a 
deposit policy for custodial credit risk.  At year end, the carrying value of the Town’s 
deposits was $924,060 and the bank balance was $1,942,165. 

 
At year end, the Town’s investments consisted of the following. 

 

    
Investments Maturities  

(in Years) 
Investment Type  Fair Value  Less than 1  1-5 
Money Market - U.S. Treasuries  $  1,201,144  $4,081,253  $ 
Municipal Securities  634,293    634,293 
U.S Treasury Bonds/Notes  19,189,217    19,189,217 
U.S. Agencies Bonds/Notes  9,835,446  3,075,331  6,760,115 
   $7,156,584  $  26,583,625 
     
County Treasurer’s investment pool  1,199,480  248 days average maturities 
State Treasurer’s investment pool 5  2,600,140  25 days average maturities 

Total  $37,539,829
 
Interest Rate Risk.  The Town has implemented an investment policy that will minimize 
interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall 
due to changes in market interest rates by the following. 
 

1. Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash 
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on 
the open market prior to maturity; and  

2. Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual 
funds, or similar investment pools limiting the average maturity in the portfolio in 
accordance with this policy. 

 
Credit Risk.  The Town has implemented an investment policy that will minimize credit risk, 
which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security or backer by the following: 
 

1. Limiting investments to the types of securities listed in Section 6 if this investment 
policy; 

2. Pre-qualifying financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with 
which the Town will do business in accordance with Section 5; and  

3. Diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any 
one type of security or from any one individual issuer will be minimized. 
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NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Concl’d) 
 
As of year end, the Town’s investment in the State and County Treasurers’ investment pools 
did not receive a credit quality rating from a national rating agency.  The State Treasurer’s 
investment pool 5 was rated AAAF/S1+ by Standard and Poor’s at year end.  The Town’s 
investments in U.S. agencies and municipal bonds were rated AA+ and AAA/AA, 
respectively, by Standard and Poor’s. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments.  The Town’s investment in the State and County 
Treasurer’s investment pools represents a proportionate interest in the pool’s portfolio; 
however, the Town’s portion is not identified with specific investments and is not subject to 
custodial credit risk.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk.  The Town places no limit on the amount the Town may invest 
in any one issuer.  More than 5 percent of the Town’s investments are in FHLMC and FNMA 
notes.  These investments are 11% and 19% of the Town’s total investments, respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 4 – RECEIVABLES 
 

Receivable balances, net of allowance for uncollectibles, have been disaggregated by type and 
presented separately in the financial statements with the exception of intergovernmental 
receivables.  Intergovernmental receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles, as of year end 
for the Town’s individual major funds in the aggregate, were as follows. 
 

 
General 

Fund
HURF 
Fund  

Townwide 
Roadway 

Development 
Impact Fees

Intergovernmental receivables:
Due from Federal government $    129,517 $ $ 
Due from State government 350,235 250,427 
Due from other governments  1,847,349 

Net intergovernmental receivables $    479,752 $  250,427 $     1,847,349 
 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Governmental 
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but 
not yet earned.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred 
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows. 
 
 Unearned   Unavailable

Prepaid developer fees (General Fund) $      186,728  $ 
Special assessments (Oracle Road Debt Service Fund)  2,435,000 

Total deferred revenue for governmental funds $      186,728  $    2,435,000 
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

A summary of capital asset activity for the current fiscal year follows. 
 

Governmental Activities 
Beginning 
Balance Increase Decrease  Ending Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $     18,878,468  $  $  $     18,878,468 
Construction in progress 6,083,031  4,246,711  386,248  9,943,494 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 24,961,499  4,246,711  386,248  28,821,962 
Capital assets, being depreciated:         

Infrastructure 152,734,484  1,211,281     153,945,765 
Buildings and improvements 24,330,218  5,361,411   3,141,641  26,549,988 
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 11,328,666  849,560   677,751  11,500,475 

Total capital assets being depreciated 188,393,368  7,422,252   3,819,392  191,996,228 
Less accumulated depreciation for:            

Infrastructure (55,238,241) (5,887,557)     (61,125,798)
Buildings and improvements (5,566,333) (586,592)  (611,040) (5,541,885)
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles  (7,652,183) (997,035)  (601,548) (8,047,670)

Total accumulated depreciation  (68,456,757) (7,471,184) (1,212,588) (74,715,353)
        
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 119,936,611  (48,932) 2,606,804  117,280,875 
Governmental activities capital assets, net $    144,898,110  $       4,197,779  $   2,993,052  $146,102,837 
    

Business-Type Activities 
Beginning 
Balance Increase Decrease  Ending Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:      
Land  $        2,410,660  $  $  $       2,410,660 
Water rights 8,534,490    8,534,490 
Construction in progress 2,572,273  952,893  3,525,166  

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 13,517,423  952,893  3,525,166  10,945,150 
Capital assets, being depreciated:       

Water system 107,415,415  5,459,005   112,874,420 
Stormwater system 2,779,503      2,779,503 
Equipment and vehicles 3,894,930  492,703   4,387,633 

Total capital assets being depreciated 114,089,848  5,951,708   120,041,556 
Less accumulated depreciation for:       

Water system (27,427,164) (2,609,994)  (30,037,158)
Stormwater system (132,645) (59,291)  (191,936)
Equipment and vehicles (2,496,521) (349,355)  (2,845,876)

Total accumulated depreciation (30,056,330) (3,018,640)  (33,074,970)
       
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 84,033,518  2,933,068   86,966,586 
Business-type activities capital assets, net $      97,550,941  $       3,885,961  $    3,525,166  $     97,911,736 
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Concl’d) 
 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 
 

Governmental activities: 
General government $   728,025 
Public Safety 368,650 
Highways and streets 5,975,300 
Culture and recreation 399,209 

  
Total depreciation expense – governmental activities $7,471,184 
  

Business-type activities:  
Water $2,896,056 
Stormwater 122,584 
  
Total depreciation expense – business-type activities $3,018,640 

 
Special Item – On January 1, 2013, the Town transferred library operations and management 
to the Pima County Free Public Library District.  A portion of the library capital assets were 
conveyed to the Pima County Free Library District which resulted in a reduction of $3.4 
million in the Town’s capital assets. 
 
Construction Commitments – As of year end, the Town was involved in several 
construction projects.  The estimated cost to complete the construction projects is $5.5 
million. 

 
 
NOTE 6 – LOANS PAYABLE 
 

The Town received two loans from the Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona for 
water system projects.  The loans payable at current fiscal year end are presented below. 

 

Business-type activities:  

Interest Rate 
(Including 

Fees) 
Remaining 
Maturities 

Outstanding 
Principal 

June 30, 2013  

Due 
Within 

One Year
WIFA Loan, 2007  2.04%  7/1/13-24  $       3,616,397 $   192,168
WIFA Loan, 2009  2.75%  7/1/13-29  1,958,644  89,786 

Total      $       5,575,041 $   281,954
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NOTE 6 – LOANS PAYABLE (Concl’d) 
 

Principal and interest payments on the business-type activities loans payable at June 30, 2013 
are summarized as follows. 
 

  Business-type Activities 
Year ending June 30:  Principal Interest 

2014  $     281,954 $      185,162
2015  290,521 175,372 
2016  300,461 165,264 
2017  310,740 154,808 
2018  321,372 143,995 
2019-23  1,779,551 544,312 
2024-28  2,004,230 214,344 
2029-30  286,212 9,120 

Total  $  5,575,041 $   1,592,377
 
 

NOTE 7 – BONDS PAYABLE 
 
Bonds payable at year end, consisted of the following outstanding revenue and refunding 
bonds. The bonds are both callable and noncallable with interest payable semiannually.  
Taxes and Impact Fees are used to pay bonded debt. 
 

Purpose  

Original 
Amount 
Issued 

Interest 
Rates 

Remaining 
Maturities  

Outstanding 
Principal 

June 30, 2013
Due Within
One Year

Governmental activities:           
Revenue Bonds, 2005  $     4,164,050  3.50-4.25%  7/1/13-25  $       3,068,600  $    184,250
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2007  1,389,180  4.25-5.00%  7/1/13-26  1,269,450  9,750
Excise Tax Revenue Obligations, 2010  2,445,000  3.08-6.59%  7/1/13-27  2,185,000  135,000
Revenue Bonds, 2012  2,580,000  2.00-4.00%  7/1/13-27  2,580,000  115,000

Total       $       9,103,050  $    444,000
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NOTE 7 – BONDS PAYABLE (Cont’d) 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity on revenue and refunding bonds for 
governmental activities at year end are summarized as follows. 
 

  Governmental Activities 
Year ending June 30:  Principal  Interest 

2014  $          444,000 $         382,639
2015  479,440 367,991 
2016  530,920 350,711 
2017  539,960 330,665 
2018  554,000 308,392 
2019-23  3,324,340 1,126,568 
2024-28  3,230,390 330,038 

Total  $       9,103,050 $      3,197,004
 

Purpose  

Original 
Amount 
Issued 

Interest 
Rates 

Remaining 
Maturities

Outstanding 
Principal 

June 30, 2013
Due Within
One Year 

Business-type activities:           
Revenue Bonds, 2003  $   31,750,000 3.70-5.00%  7/1/13-28  $          980,000 $     980,000
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2003  10,225,080 3.75-5.00%  7/1/13-19  940,000 940,000
Revenue Bonds, 2005  2,050,950 3.50-4.25%  7/1/13-25  1,511,400 90,750
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2007  16,420,820  4.25-5.00%  7/1/13-26  15,005,550 115,250
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2012  16,595,000 2.00-5.00%  7/1/13-28  16,595,000 280,000
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2013  6,355,000 1.45%  7/1/14-19  6,355,000  

Total       $     41,386,950 $  2,406,000
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity revenue and refunding bonds for business-type 
activities at year end are summarized as follows. 
 

  Business-type Activities 
Year ending June 30:  Principal  Interest 

2014  $       2,406,000 $    2,576,206
2015  2,995,560 1,400,141
2016  3,054,080 1,322,821
2017  3,155,040 1,236,878
2018  3,231,000 1,152,362
2019-23  17,305,660 3,837,443
2024-28  8,874,610 814,728
2029  365,000 6,159

Total  $     41,386,950 $  12,346,738
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NOTE 7 – BONDS PAYABLE (Concl’d) 
 
Issuance of refunding bonds – business-type activities.  On June 26, 2013, the Town 
issued $6,355,000 in refunding bonds, with an effective interest rate of 1.4 percent, to 
advance refund $6,275,000 of outstanding MPC Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2003, with an average interest rate of 4.0 percent.  The net proceeds of $6.3 million, 
(after payment of $76,485 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were 
used to purchase U.S. government securities.  Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent, to provide for all future debt service payments of the 
refunded revenue bonds.  As a result, the refunded revenue bonds are considered to be 
defeased, and the liability for those bonds has been removed from both the government-wide 
and proprietary funds financial statements.  The advanced refunding was undertaken to 
reduce total debt service payments over the next 5 years by $145,614 and resulted in an 
economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 
payments) of $458,679. 
 
Pledged revenues – governmental activities.  The Town has pledged future sales (excise) 
tax revenues to repay outstanding revenue bonds and refunding revenue bonds of $9.1 
million as of June 30, 2013.  Proceeds from the original bond issuances, including those 
subsequently refunded, provided financing for land acquisition and facility construction.  The 
bonds are paid solely from the Town’s sales taxes and are payable through 2028.  Total 
annual principal and interest payments for all sales tax revenue bonds are expected to require 
less than 7% of gross revenues.  The total principal and interest to be paid on the bonds is 
$12.3 million.  The current total sales tax revenues were $13.5 million and the total principal 
and interest paid on the bonds was $693,861, or 5% of gross revenues.  

 
Pledged revenues – business-type activities.  The Town has pledged future water revenues 
to repay outstanding revenue bonds and refunding revenue bonds of $41.4 million as of  
June 30, 2013.  Proceeds from the original bond issuances, including those subsequently 
refunded, provided financing for the construction and improvements to the Town’s water 
systems and infrastructure.  The bonds are paid solely from water utility revenues and are 
payable through 2029.  Total annual principal and interest payments for all water revenue 
bond issuances are expected to require approximately 25% of gross revenues.  The total 
principal and interest to be paid on the bonds is $53.7 million.  The current total customer 
gross revenues were $16.7 million and the total principal and interest paid on the bonds was 
$4.3 million or 26% of gross revenues. 
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NOTE 8 – SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS 
 
Special assessment bonds at year end consisted of the following outstanding bonds.  The 
bonds are both callable and noncallable with interest payable semiannually.  Special 
assessments from the Oracle Road Debt Service Fund are used to pay bonded debt.   
 

Purpose  

Original 
Amount 
Issued 

Interest 
Rates 

Remaining 
Maturities

Outstanding 
Principal 

June 30, 2013

Due 
Within 

One Year
Governmental activities:           

Special assessments debt  $3,945,000 4.20-5.00%  1/1/13-21  $     2,435,000  $  260,000 
Total       $    2,435,000  $  260,000 

 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity on special assessment bonds at year end are 
summarized as follows. 
 

  Governmental Activities 
Year ending June 30:  Principal Interest 

2014  $      260,000 $   105,867
2015  270,000 94,602 
2016  280,000 82,637 
2017  295,000 69,102 
2018  310,000 54,674 
2019-21  1,020,000 73,345 

Total  $   2,435,000 $   480,227
 
 

NOTE 9 – OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES 
 

The business-type activities of the Town have acquired a street sweeper and vacuum 
excavator under the provisions of long-term lease agreements classified as a capital leases.  
The lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have 
been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the 
inception date.  Revenues from the Stormwater Fund are used to pay the capital lease 
obligations.   
 
The assets capitalized and acquired through capital leases are as follows. 

 

  
Business-type 

Activities 
Asset:   

Vehicles  $        280,819 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  13,609 

Total  $        267,210 
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NOTE 9 – OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES (Concl’d) 
 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments at year end were as follows. 
 

Year Ending June 30:  
Governmental 

Activities 
2014  $             95,512 
2015  95,512 

Total minimum lease payments  191,024 
  
Less:  amount representing interest  5,717 
  
Present value of minimum lease payments  $           185,307 
  
Due within one year  $             91,713 

 
 
NOTE 10 – CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

Long-term liability activity for the current fiscal year was as follows. 
 

  
Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions  

Ending 
Balance

Due Within 
One Year

Governmental activities: 
Revenue bonds payable $     9,424,960 $ $     321,910 $    9,103,050 $      444,000 
Deferred bond premium 61,008 8,315 52,693 
Special assessments payable 2,685,000 250,000 2,435,000 260,000 
Compensated absences payable 1,651,147 1,535,700 1,454,242 1,732,605 1,351,432 
Governmental activity long-term 

liabilities $   13,822,115 $   1,535,700 $  2,034,467 $  13,323,348 $   2,055,432 
 
 

Business-type activities: 
Revenue bonds payable $   43,843,790 $   6,355,000 $  8,811,840 $  41,386,950 $   2,406,000 
Deferred bond premium 2,144,541 182,370 1,962,171 
Loan payable 5,893,122 318,081 5,575,041 281,954 
Capital lease payable 280,819 95,512 185,307 91,713 
Compensated absences payable 242,287 240,520 222,819 259,988 171,592 
Business-type activities long-term 

liabilities $   52,123,740 $   6,876,339 $  9,630,622 $  49,369,457 $   2,951,259 
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NOTE 11 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 
 

Due to/from other funds – At year end, the Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees 
Fund had interfund borrowing with the General Fund to address temporary cash flow needs.  
All interfund balances are expected to be paid within one year. 
 
Interfund transfers: 
 

  Transfers in

Transfers out  
General 

Fund

Aquatic 
Center 

Project Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds  

Internal 
Service 
Funds Total

General Fund  $ $      910,000 $           135,324  $    300,000 $ 1,345,324
Non-Major Governmental Funds  106,629 550,000  656,629
Water Fund  2,319  2,319
Total  $     106,629 $   1,460,000 $           137,643  $    300,000 $ 2,004,272

 
Transfers were made from the General, Bed Tax, and Townwide Facilities Projects Funds to 
the Aquatic Center Project Fund to provide funding for the construction of the Aquatic 
Center Facilities at James D. Kriegh Park as approved by the Town Council.  In addition, 
transfers were made from the General and Water Funds to the Municipal Debt Service Fund 
for debt service.  The transfer from the General Fund to the Internal Service Funds was to 
help establish the Self Insurance Fund.  Finally, transfers were made from the Bed Tax Fund 
to the General Fund to subsidize the increased operating costs of the new Oro Valley Aquatic 
Center as directed by the Town Council. 

 
 
NOTE 12 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

Compliance – Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, 
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The 
amount, if any, of expenditures/expenses that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 
determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
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NOTE 13 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.   
 
The Town’s insurance protection is provided by the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool, 
of which the Town is a participating member.  The limit for basic coverage is for $2,000,000 
per occurrence on a claims made basis.  Excess coverage is for an additional $10,000,000 per 
occurrence on a follow form, claims made basis.  The aggregate limit is also $10,000,000.  No 
significant reduction in insurance coverage occurred during the year and no settlements 
exceeded insurance coverage during any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
The Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool is structured such that member premiums are 
based on an actuarial review that will provide adequate reserves to allow the Pool to meet its 
expected financial obligations.  The Pool has the authority to assess its members’ additional 
premiums should reserves and annual premiums be insufficient to meet the Pool’s obligations. 
 
The Town is insured by Arizona Municipal Workers Compensation Pool for potential worker 
related accidents. 
 
The Town has established a Self Insurance Fund to account for and finance its employee 
health benefits program.  The activity is reported in an internal service fund in these financial 
statements.  Under this program, the Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of 
$100,000 for each claim, not to exceed an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.  The Fund 
purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of this coverage.  Settled claims have 
not exceeded this coverage for the fiscal year. 
 
The Town limits its exposure through specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage.  All claims 
handling procedures are performed by a third-party claims administrator.  Reported unpaid 
claims, as well as incurred bur not reported claims, have been accrued as a liability based 
upon the claims administrator’s estimate  These claims are expected to be fully paid within 
one year of the financial statement date. 
 

  

Claims 
Payable 

Beginning of 
Year 

Current Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

Claim 
Payments  

Claims 
Payable at  

End of Year
2012-13  - 0 -  $          1,402,981  $  1,315,847  $         87,134 
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NOTE 14 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

Plan Descriptions – The Town contributes to the three plans described below.  Benefits are 
established by state statute and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, 
survivor, and health insurance premium benefits. 

 
The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan; a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit health 
insurance premium plan; and a cost-staring, multiple-employer defined benefit long-term 
disability plan that covers employees of the State of Arizona and employees of participating 
political subdivisions and school districts.  The ASRS is governed by the Arizona State 
Retirement System Board according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2. 
 
The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) administers agent multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health 
insurance premium plan that covers public safety personnel who are regularly assigned 
hazardous duty as employees of the State of Arizona or one of its political subdivisions.  The 
PSPRS, acting as a common investment and administrative agent, is governed by a five-
member board, known as The Fund Manager, and 162 local boards according to the 
provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. 
 
The Corrections Officer Retirement Plan (CORP) administers an agent multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance 
premium plan that covers certain employees of the State of Arizona’s Department of 
Corrections and Department of Juvenile Corrections, and county employees whose primary 
duties require direct inmate contact.  The CORP is governed by The Fund Manager of PSPRS 
and the participating local boards according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, 
Article 6. 
 
Each plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and 
required supplementary information.  A report may be obtained by writing or calling the 
applicable plan.  The reports are also available on their websites at www.azasrs.gov and 
www.psprs.com. 
 

ASRS PSPRS/CORP 
P.O. Box 33910 3010 E. Camelback Road Suite 200
Phoenix, AZ  85012-0250 Phoenix, AZ  85016 
(602) 240-2200 or (800) 621-3778 (602) 255-5575
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NOTE 14 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d) 
 

Funding policy – The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan 
members’ and the Town’s contribution rates. 

 
Cost-sharing plans – The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan 
members’ and the Town’s contribution rates.  For the current fiscal year, active ASRS 
members were required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.14 
percent (10.90 percent for retirement and 0.24 percent for long-term disability) of the 
members’ annual covered payroll and the Town was required by statute to contribute at the 
actuarially determined rate of 11.14 percent (10.25 percent for retirement, 0.65 percent for 
health insurance premium, and 0.24 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual 
covered payroll. 

 
The Town’s contributions for the current and two preceding years, all of which were equal to 
the required contributions, were as follows. 

 

  
Retirement 

Fund  

Health Benefit 
Supplement 

Fund  

Long-Term 
Disability 

Fund 
Year ending June 30:       

2013 $ 1,089,376  $          69,082    $        25,507  
2012 924,771  59,028    22,487  
2011 985,116  77,959    47,248  

 
Agent plan – For the current fiscal year, active PSPRS and CORP members were required by 
statute to contribute 9.55 and 7.96 percent of the members’ annual covered payroll, and the 
Town was required to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 18.72 and 11.28 percent.  
The health insurance premium portion of the contribution rate was actuarially set at 1.34 
percent of covered payroll for PSPRS and 0.89 percent for CORP. 
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NOTE 14 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d) 
 
Actuarial methods and assumptions – The contribution requirements for the year ended       
June 30, 2013 were established by the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuations, and those actuarial 
valuations were based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions.  Actuarial 
valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future.  The required schedule of funding programs which follows 
provides multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plans’ 
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

 
 PSPRS CORP 
Contribution rates:    
   Town 18.72%  11.28% 
   Plan members 9.55%  7.96% 
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2011  June 30, 2011 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal  Entry age normal 
Actuarial assumptions:    
   Investment rate of return 8.25%  8.25% 
   Projected salary increases 5.0% - 8.0%  5.0% - 8.0% 
   Payroll growth 5.0%  5.0% 
   Healthcare cost trend rate N/A - flat rate subsidy  N/A - flat rate subsidy 
Amortization method Level percent-of-pay closed  Level percent-of-pay closed 
Remaining amortization 25 years for underfunded , 20 

years for overfunded 
 25 years for underfunded , 20 years 

for overfunded 
Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market  7-year smoothed market 

 
Annual Pension/OPEB Cost – The Town’s pension/OPEB cost for the agent plans for the 
current fiscal year end and related information follows. 

 
  PSPRS CORP 

 
 

Pension
Health 

Insurance Pension 
 Health 

Insurance
Annual pension/OPEB cost  $       1,031,650 $       79,540 $     44,936  $        3,849
Contributions made  $       1,031,650 $       79,540 $     44,936  $        3,849
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NOTE 14 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d) 
 
Trend Information – Information for each of the agent plans as of most recent actuarial 
valuations follows. 

 
Oro Valley Police Plan (PSPRS):

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Annual Pension
Cost (APC) 

Percentage of APC
Contributed

Net Pension
Obligation

  Pension   
2013 $1,031,650 100% -0- 
2012 914,787 100% -0- 
2011 874,605 100% -0- 

  Health Insurance  
2013 $    79,540 100% -0- 
2012 40,410 100% -0- 
2011 36,442 100% -0- 

 
 
Oro Valley Dispatchers Plan (CORP):

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Annual Pension
Cost (APC) 

Percentage of APC
Contributed

Net Pension
Obligation

  Pension   
2013 $44,936 100% -0- 
2012 40,512 100% -0- 
2011 47,611 100% -0- 

  Health Insurance  
2013 $  3,849 100% -0- 
2012 2,051 100% -0- 
2011 1,925 100% -0- 
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NOTE 14 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Concl’d) 
 
Funding Progress – An analysis of funding progress for each of the agent plans as of the 
most recent actuarial valuations follows.   
 
Oro Valley Police Plan (PSPRS):  

Pension  

Valuation 
Date 

June 30, 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Plan Assets 
      (a)        

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
      (b)    

Funding 
Liability 
   (a-b)    

Funded 
Ratio 
 (a/b)   

Annual 
Covered  
Payroll 
    (c)       

Unfunded 
Liability as 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
([a-b]/c)

2012 $21,539,446  $29,146,126 $(7,606,680) 73.9% $5,994,297 126.90% 
2011 19,281,518  25,262,364 (5,980,846) 76.3% 5,728,605 104.40% 
2010 17,152,906 21,796,927 (4,644,021) 78.7% 5,994,879 77.47% 

  
Health Insurance  

2012 $       -0-       $    870,374 $  (870,374) 0.0% $ 5,994,297 14.52% 
2011        -0-       942,374 (942,374) 0.0% 5,728,605 16.45% 
2010         -0-       715,698 (715,698) 0.0% 5,994,879 11.94% 
 

 
Oro Valley Dispatchers Plan (CORP): 

Pension      

Valuation  
Date  

June 30, 

Actuarial  
Value of  

Plan Assets 
     (a)        

Actuarial  
Accrued 
Liability 

        (b)        

Funding 
Liability 

       (a-b)      

Funded 
Ratio  

   (a/b)    

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

     (c)      

Unfunded 
Liability as 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll  
 [a-b]/c)  

2012 $1,173,314 $1,904,329 $(731,015) 61.6% $451,808 161.80% 
2011 1,160,778 1,670,411 (509,633) 69.5% 477,701 106.68% 
2010 1,057,358 1,349,198 (291,840) 78.4% 513,337 56.85% 

      

Health Insurance      
2012 $    -0-         $62,245 $(62,245) 0.0% $451,808 13.78% 
2011     -0-         61,474 (61,474) 0.0% 477,701 12.87% 
2010         -0-         45,521 (45,521) 0.0% 513,337 8.87% 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

(REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION)



Revenues:
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees & permits
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -

General government
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Budgeted 
Amounts

Original & Final

$ 11,827,995
500,000

11,785,572
936,469
190,000

1,217,556
89,000

134,000
26,680,592

9,591,659
12,667,903

852,520
2,630,112

908,799
26,650,993

29,599

176,747
(135,324)

41,423

71,022

(71,022)

$

Actual

$ 12,713,777
539,477

11,120,347
1,745,974

202,035
1,400,745

205,634
207,879

28,135,868

8,825,094
12,276,845
1,069,458
2,468,129

522,191
25,161,717

2,974,151

106,629
(1,345,324)
(1,238,695)

1,735,456

11,401,649

$ 13,137,105

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

$ 885,782
39,477

(665,225)
809,505

12,035
183,189
116,634

73,879
1,455,276

766,565
391,058

(216,938)
161,983
386,608

1,489,276

2,944,552

(70,118)
(1,210,000)
(1,280,118)

1,664,434

11,472,671

$ 13,137,105

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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See accompanying notes to this schedule.



Revenues:
Sales taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees & permits
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -

Highway and streets
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Budgeted 
Amounts

Original & Final

$ 316,885
2,740,005

43,000
229,493

7,000
10,000

3,346,383

 
 

6,108,346
 

6,108,346

(2,761,963)

2,761,963

$  

Actual

$ 738,492
2,842,721

67,973
229,493
25,007
16,813

3,920,499

 
 

2,444,021
976,144

3,420,165

500,334

3,017,431

$ 3,517,765

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

$ 421,607
102,716
24,973

 
18,007
6,813

574,116

 
 

3,664,325
(976,144)
2,688,181

3,262,297

255,468

$ 3,517,765

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HURF

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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See accompanying notes to this schedule.
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NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 

The adopted budget of the Town is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Special Revenue

$ 1,725,361
$ 1,725,361

$ 61,818
61,818

1,014,490
649,053

1,663,543

$ 1,725,361

Debt Service

$ 774,914
$ 774,914

$  
 

774,914
 

774,914

$ 774,914

Capital Projects

$ 447,825
$ 447,825

$ 35,141
35,141

412,684
 

412,684

$ 447,825

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE

JUNE 30, 2013
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Total Non-
Major 

Governmental 
Fund

$ 2,948,100
$ 2,948,100

$ 96,959
96,959

2,202,088
649,053

2,851,141

$ 2,948,100
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Revenues:
Sales taxes
Development impact fees
Intergovernmental
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -

General government
Public safety
Capital outlay

Debt service -
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Special Revenue

$ 788,796
 
 

349,927
10,302
10,000

1,159,025

464,677
65,504

239,679

 
 

769,860

389,165

 
(406,629)
(406,629)

(17,464)

1,681,007

$ 1,663,543

Debt Service

$  
 

77,517
 

23
96,259

173,799

 
 
 

321,910
379,351
701,261

(527,462)

137,643
 

137,643

(389,819)

1,164,733

$ 774,914

Capital Projects

$  
268,415

 
 

3,678
 

272,093

 
 

468,627

 
 

468,627

(196,534)

 
(250,000)
(250,000)

(446,534)

859,218

$ 412,684

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

ALL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Total Non-
Major 

Governmental 
Funds

$ 788,796
268,415
77,517

349,927
14,003

106,259
1,604,917

464,677
65,504

708,306

321,910
379,351

1,939,748

(334,831)

137,643
(656,629)
(518,986)

(853,817)

3,704,958

$ 2,851,141
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
 
The Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than 
major capital projects, that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
 
State Seizures and Forfeitures – accounts for state police seizures and forfeitures received by 
the Town. 
 
Federal Seizures and Forfeitures – accounts for federal police seizures and forfeitures received 
by the Town. 
 
Bed Tax – accounts for the collection of the 6 percent bed tax revenues which funds economic 
development and tourism initiatives. 
 
Impound Fee – accounts for the collection of administrative fees for processing vehicles 
impounded by the Oro Valley police department. 
 



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

State Seizures 
and Forfeitures

$ 496,823
$ 496,823

$ 1,986
1,986

494,837
 

494,837

$ 496,823

Federal Seizures 
and Forfeitures

$ 548,472
$ 548,472

$ 28,819
28,819

519,653
 

519,653

$ 548,472

Bed Tax

$ 680,048
$ 680,048

$ 30,995
30,995

 
649,053
649,053

$ 680,048

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
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Impound Fee

$ 18
$ 18

$ 18
18

 
 
 

$ 18

Totals

$ 1,725,361
$ 1,725,361

$ 61,818
61,818

1,014,490
649,053

1,663,543

$ 1,725,361
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Revenues:
Sales taxes
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -

General government
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

State Seizures 
and Forfeitures

$  
118,711

3,075
 

121,786

61,118
 

30,014
91,132

30,654

 
 

30,654

464,183

$ 494,837

Federal Seizures 
and Forfeitures

$  
197,166

3,751
 

200,917

 
65,504

209,665
275,169

(74,252)

 
 

(74,252)

593,905

$ 519,653

Bed Tax

$ 788,796
 

3,476
10,000

802,272

369,509
 
 

369,509

432,763

(406,629)
(406,629)

26,134

622,919

$ 649,053

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Impound Fee

$  
34,050

 
 

34,050

34,050
 
 

34,050

 

 
 

 

 

$  

Totals

$ 788,796
349,927
10,302
10,000

1,159,025

464,677
65,504

239,679
769,860

389,165

(406,629)
(406,629)

(17,464)

1,681,007

$ 1,663,543
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Total revenues

Revenues:
Sales taxes
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Investment earnings
Other

Expenditures:
Current -

General government
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

State Seizures and Forfeitures 

Budget

$  
175,000

 
 

175,000

 
 

467,924
 
 

467,924

(292,924)

 
 
 

(292,924)

292,924
 

$  

Actual

$  
118,711

3,075
 

121,786

 
 

61,118
 

30,014
91,132

30,654

 
 
 

30,654

464,183
 

$ 494,837

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$  
(56,289)

3,075
 

(53,214)

 
 

406,806
 

(30,014)
376,792

323,578

 
 
 

323,578

171,259
 

$ 494,837

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Federal Seizures and Forfeitures 

Budget

$  
250,000

 
 

250,000

 
 
 

832,189
 

832,189

(582,189)

 
 
 

(582,189)

582,189
 

$  

Actual

$  
197,166

3,751
 

200,917

 
 
 

65,504
209,665
275,169

(74,252)

 
 
 

(74,252)

593,905
 

$ 519,653

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$  
(52,834)

3,751
 

(49,083)

 
 
 

766,685
(209,665)

557,020

507,937

 
 
 

507,937

11,716
 

$ 519,653

Bed Tax 

Budget

$ 782,283
 

5,700
 

787,983

 
 

790,091
 
 

790,091

(2,108)

 
(194,810)
(194,810)

(196,918)

196,918
 

$  

Actual

$ 788,796
 

3,476
10,000

802,272

 
 

369,509
 
 

369,509

432,763

 
(406,629)
(406,629)

26,134

622,919
 

$ 649,053

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ 6,513
 

(2,224)
10,000
14,289

 
 

420,582
 
 

420,582

434,871

 
(211,819)
(211,819)

223,052

426,001
 

$ 649,053
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Total revenues

Revenues:
Sales taxes
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Investment earnings
Other

Expenditures:
Current -

General government
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Impound Fee 

Budget

$  
47,503

 
 

47,503

 
 

47,503
 
 

47,503

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

$  

Actual

$  
34,050

 
 

34,050

 
 

34,050
 
 

34,050

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

$  

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$  
(13,453)

 
 

(13,453)

 
 

13,453
 
 

13,453

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

$  

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Totals 

Budget

$ 782,283
472,503

5,700
 

1,260,486

 
 

1,305,518
832,189

 
2,137,707

(877,221)

 
(194,810)
(194,810)

(1,072,031)

1,072,031
 

$  

Actual

$ 788,796
349,927
10,302
10,000

1,159,025

 
 

464,677
65,504

239,679
769,860

389,165

 
(406,629)
(406,629)

(17,464)

1,681,007
 

$ 1,663,543

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ 6,513
(122,576)

4,602
10,000

(101,461)

 
 

840,841
766,685

(239,679)
1,367,847

1,266,386

 
(211,819)
(211,819)

1,054,567

608,976
 

$ 1,663,543
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MUNICIPAL DEBT SERVICE FUND 
 
 
Municipal Debt Service - to account for the payments of debt service on the Municipal Property 
Corporation Revenue Bonds of 2003 Refunding, 2005 and 2007 Refunding, and Series 2010 
Excise Tax Revenue Obligations.  



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Fund balances:
Restricted

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Municipal Debt 
Service

$ 774,914
$ 774,914

$ 774,914
774,914

$ 774,914

Totals

$ 774,914
$ 774,914

$ 774,914
774,914

$ 774,914

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
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Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service -

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Municipal Debt 
Service

$ 77,517
23

96,259
173,799

321,910
379,351
701,261

(527,462)

137,643
137,643

(389,819)

1,164,733

$ 774,914

Totals

$ 77,517
23

96,259
173,799

321,910
379,351
701,261

(527,462)

137,643
137,643

(389,819)

1,164,733

$ 774,914

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Total revenues

Revenues:
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Other

Expenditures:
Debt service -

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Municipal Debt Service 

Budget

$  
83,784

 
100,000
183,784

 
 

321,910
1,248,238
1,570,148

(1,386,364)

 
155,706
155,706

(1,230,658)

1,230,658
 

$  

Actual

$  
77,517

23
96,259

173,799

 
 

321,910
379,351
701,261

(527,462)

 
137,643
137,643

(389,819)

1,164,733
 

$ 774,914

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$  
(6,267)

23
(3,741)
(9,985)

 
 
 

868,887
868,887

858,902

 
(18,063)
(18,063)

840,839

(65,925)
 

$ 774,914

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Oracle Road Debt Service 

Budget

$ 367,578
 
 
 

367,578

 
 

250,000
121,693
371,693

(4,115)

 
 
 

(4,115)

4,115
 

$  

Actual

$ 365,935
 
 
 

365,935

 
 

250,000
119,378
369,378

(3,443)

 
 
 

(3,443)

3,592
 

$ 149

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ (1,643)
 
 
 

(1,643)

 
 
 

2,315
2,315

672

 
 
 

672

(523)
 

$ 149

Totals 

Budget

$ 367,578
83,784

 
100,000
551,362

 
 

571,910
1,369,931
1,941,841

(1,390,479)

 
155,706
155,706

(1,234,773)

1,234,773
 

$  

Actual

$ 365,935
77,517

23
96,259

539,734

 
 

571,910
498,729

1,070,639

(530,905)

 
137,643
137,643

(393,262)

1,168,325
 

$ 775,063

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ (1,643)
(6,267)

23
(3,741)

(11,628)

 
 
 

871,202
871,202

859,574

 
(18,063)
(18,063)

841,511

(66,448)
 

$ 775,063
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 
 
Capital Projects Funds are created to account for the purchase or construction of major capital 
facilities which are not financed by the general, enterprise, or special revenue funds. 
 
General Impact Fees – accounts for the collection of development impact fees charged for new 
residential and nonresidential growth to be used for future general government facilities, 
vehicles, equipment, and other necessary general government infrastructure needed as a result of 
new growth. 
 
Townwide Facilities Projects – accounts for revenues dedicated to constructing solar facilities, 
improvements to Town parks, and historic properties. 
 
Aquatic Center Project – accounts for construction of expanded Aquatic Center at James D. 
Kriegh Park. 



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

General Impact 
Fees

$ 397,674
$ 397,674

$  
 

397,674
397,674

$ 397,674

Townwide 
Facilities 
Projects

$ 50,151
$ 50,151

$ 35,141
35,141

15,010
15,010

$ 50,151

Totals

$ 447,825
$ 447,825

$ 35,141
35,141

412,684
412,684

$ 447,825

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
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Revenues:
Development impact fees
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

General Impact 
Fees

$ 268,415
3,678

272,093

318,986
318,986

(46,893)

 
 

(46,893)

444,567

$ 397,674

Townwide 
Facilities 
Projects

$  
 
 

149,641
149,641

(149,641)

(250,000)
(250,000)

(399,641)

414,651

$ 15,010

Totals

$ 268,415
3,678

272,093

468,627
468,627

(196,534)

(250,000)
(250,000)

(446,534)

859,218

$ 412,684

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Total revenues

Revenues:
Development impact fees
Intergovernmental
Contributions and donations
Investment earnings
Other

Expenditures:
Current -

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees 

Budget

$ 414,118
5,979,000

 
1,600

18,000
6,412,718

 
 

7,128,581
7,128,581

(715,863)

 
 
 
 

(715,863)

715,863
 

$  

Actual

$ 719,927
2,777,171

 
21,143
18,375

3,536,616

 
 

4,304,175
4,304,175

(767,559)

 
 
 
 

(767,559)

2,228,996
 

$ 1,461,437

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ 305,809
(3,201,829)

 
19,543

375
(2,876,102)

 
 

2,824,406
2,824,406

(51,696)

 
 
 
 

(51,696)

1,513,133
 

$ 1,461,437

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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General Impact Fees 

Budget

$ 179,302
 
 
 
 

179,302

 
 

985,765
985,765

(806,463)

 
 
 
 

(806,463)

806,463
 

$  

Actual

$ 268,415
 
 

3,678
 

272,093

 
 

318,986
318,986

(46,893)

 
 
 
 

(46,893)

444,567
 

$ 397,674

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ 89,113
 
 

3,678
 

92,791

 
 

666,779
666,779

759,570

 
 
 
 

759,570

(361,896)
 

$ 397,674

Townwide Facilities Projects 

Budget

$  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

444,061
444,061

(444,061)

 
 
 
 

(444,061)

444,061
 

$  

Actual

$  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

149,641
149,641

(149,641)

 
 

(250,000)
(250,000)

(399,641)

414,651
 

$ 15,010

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

294,420
294,420

294,420

 
 

(250,000)
(250,000)

44,420

(29,410)
 

$ 15,010

Page 95
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Total revenues

Revenues:
Development impact fees
Intergovernmental
Contributions and donations
Investment earnings
Other

Expenditures:
Current -

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses):

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Aquatic Center Project 

Budget

$  
 

300,000
 
 

300,000

 
 

3,350,000
3,350,000

(3,050,000)

 
 
 
 

(3,050,000)

3,050,000
 

$  

Actual

$  
 

27,229
 
 

27,229

 
 

4,542,923
4,542,923

(4,515,694)

 
1,460,000

 
1,460,000

(3,055,694)

3,122,332
 

$ 66,638

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$  
 

(272,771)
 
 

(272,771)

 
 

(1,192,923)
(1,192,923)

(1,465,694)

 
1,460,000

 
1,460,000

(5,694)

72,332
 

$ 66,638

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Totals 

Budget

$ 593,420
5,979,000

300,000
1,600

18,000
6,892,020

 
 

11,908,407
11,908,407

(5,016,387)

 
 
 
 

(5,016,387)

5,016,387
 

$  

Actual

$ 988,342
2,777,171

27,229
24,821
18,375

3,835,938

 
 

9,315,725
9,315,725

(5,479,787)

 
1,460,000
(250,000)
1,210,000

(4,269,787)

6,210,546
 

$ 1,940,759

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative)

$ 394,922
(3,201,829)

(272,771)
23,221

375
(3,056,082)

 
 

2,592,682
2,592,682

(463,400)

 
1,460,000
(250,000)
1,210,000

746,600

1,194,159
 

$ 1,940,759

Page 97



 

Page 98 

(This page intentionally left blank)



 

Page 99 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
 
 
Self Insurance - to account for the financial activity associated with the Town’s self-insurance 
program for employee health care. 
 
Fleet Maintenance - to account for the Town’s fleet maintenance services. 
 
 



ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Claims payable

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

Total net position

Fleet 
Maintenance

$ 32,294
32,294
32,294

32,294
 

32,294
32,294

 
$  

Self Insurance

$ 668,786
668,786
668,786

14,250
87,134

101,384
101,384

567,402
$ 567,402

Totals

$ 701,080
701,080
701,080

46,544
87,134

133,678
133,678

567,402
$ 567,402

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - 

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013
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Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Self insurance premiums

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Costs of sales and services
Claims payments
Administrative fees
Reinsurance premiums

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in

Changes in net position

Total net postion, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

Fleet 
Maintenance

$ 638,787
 

638,787

638,787
 
 
 

638,787

 

 

 

 

 

$  

Self Insurance

$  
2,157,847
2,157,847

 
1,402,981

57,000
430,464

1,890,445

267,402

267,402

300,000

567,402

 

$ 567,402

Totals

$ 638,787
2,157,847
2,796,634

638,787
1,402,981

57,000
430,464

2,529,232

267,402

267,402

300,000

567,402

 

$ 567,402

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - 

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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Fleet Maintenance Self Insurance Total
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 638,787$             $ 638,787$             
Cash received from premiums 2,157,847         2,157,847
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (550,655) (473,214) (1,023,869)
Cash payments to employees for services (81,593) (81,593)
Cash payments for claims (1,315,847) (1,315,847)

Net cash provided by operating activities 6,539 368,786 375,325

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Interfund transfers 300,000 300,000

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 300,000 300,000

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,539 668,786 675,325

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 25,755 25,755

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 32,294$               668,786$          701,080$             

Reconciliation of Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income 267,402$          267,402$             

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts payable 6,539 14,250 20,789
Increase in claims payable 87,134 87,134

Total adjustments 6,539 101,384 107,923

Net cash provided by operating activities 6,539$                 368,786$          375,325$             

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 

The statistical section presents financial statement trends as well as detailed financial and 
operational information not available elsewhere in the report.  The statistical section is intended 
to enhance the reader’s understanding of the information presented in the financial statements, 
notes to the financial statements, and other supplementary information presented in this report.  
The statistical section is comprised of the five categories of statistical information presented 
below. 
 

 
Financial Trends 

These schedules contain information on financial trends to help the reader understand how 
the Town’s financial position and financial activities have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the 
Town’s ability to generate property revenue. 

 
Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader evaluate the Town’s current levels 
of outstanding debt as well as assess the Town’s ability to make debt payments and/or issue 
additional debt in the future. 
 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules present various demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment in which the Town’s financial activities take place and to help 
make comparisons with other municipalities. 

 
Operating Information 

These schedules contain information about the Town’s operations and various resources to 
help the reader draw conclusions as to how the Town’s financial information relates to the 
services provided by the Town. 
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Governmental activities
   Net investment in capital assets 30,546,282$      92,541,223$      107,413,486$    106,644,847$    115,177,344$    120,515,962$    127,712,057$    132,956,156$    135,336,862$    134,512,094$    
   Restricted 3,958,033          15,360,660        8,919,398          8,326,731          14,072,781        7,537,331          9,580,610          9,048,505          11,454,390        3,730,312          
   Unrestricted 19,248,712        15,394,707        15,063,081        23,571,109        26,698,611        26,135,593        15,979,093        10,588,160        10,808,596        18,901,112        

Total governmental activities net position 53,753,027$      123,296,590$    131,395,965$    138,542,687$    155,948,736$    154,188,886$    153,271,760$    152,592,821$    157,599,848$    157,143,518$    

Business-type activities
   Net investment in capital assets (14,913,572)$     546,602$           7,240,791$        15,534,043$      21,274,023$      28,212,750$      31,383,715$      40,005,568$      45,669,488$      48,802,267$      
   Restricted 3,492,488          2,310,980          2,331,001          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
   Unrestricted 33,107,781        24,499,050        22,958,536        23,252,747        24,651,948        24,393,984        24,404,427        20,371,225        19,067,780        19,501,676        

Total business-type activities net position 21,686,697$      27,356,632$      32,530,328$      38,786,790$      45,925,971$      52,606,734$      55,788,142$      60,376,793$      64,737,268$      68,303,943$      

Primary government
   Net investment in capital assets 15,632,710$      93,087,825$      114,654,277$    122,178,890$    136,451,367$    148,728,712$    159,095,772$    172,961,724$    181,006,350$    183,314,361$    
   Restricted 7,450,521          17,671,640        11,250,399        8,326,731          14,072,781        7,537,331          9,580,610          9,048,505          11,454,390        3,730,312          
   Unrestricted 52,356,493        39,893,757        38,021,617        46,823,856        51,350,559        50,529,577        40,383,520        30,959,385        29,876,376        38,402,788        

Total primary government net position 75,439,724$      150,653,222$    163,926,293$    177,329,477$    201,874,707$    206,795,620$    209,059,902$    212,969,614$    222,337,116$    225,447,461$    

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government 5,971,319$        5,997,864$        7,162,732$        7,529,245$        9,080,766$        9,936,639$        9,950,053$        9,887,523$        9,961,376$        9,861,131$        
Public Safety 9,520,219          10,309,453        11,155,542        12,352,671        14,347,250        15,019,980        13,730,593        12,509,201        12,349,948        12,770,224        
Highways and streets 2,850,172          4,789,234          5,732,026          7,757,276          7,292,972          9,481,040          9,353,689          8,895,987          9,339,062          9,255,004          
Culture and recreation 2,566,173          2,631,306          3,014,341          3,375,314          3,644,973          3,806,555          3,527,949          3,375,281          3,227,895          2,783,633          
Interest on long-term debt 456,107             653,331             805,123             996,336             987,074             954,645             1,767,155          430,570             654,262             522,917             

Total governmental activities/expenses 21,363,990        24,381,188        27,869,764        32,010,842        35,353,035        39,198,859        38,329,439        35,098,562        35,532,543        35,192,909        

Business-type activities:
Water 8,957,988          9,642,592          10,438,869        11,446,958        12,676,275        13,495,124        12,830,137        12,527,851        11,984,829        13,047,373        
Stormwater drainage 45,551               271,469             111,695             74,235               177,673             494,166             486,994             586,006             636,966             983,975             

Total business-type activities expenses 9,003,539          9,914,061          10,550,564        11,521,193        12,853,948        13,989,290        13,317,131        13,113,857        12,621,795        14,031,348        
Total primary government expenses 30,367,529$      34,295,249$      38,420,328$      43,532,035$      48,206,983$      53,188,149$      51,646,570$      48,212,419$      48,154,338$      49,224,257$      

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Fees, Fines and Charges for Services:
General government 3,902,024$        3,784,049$        4,013,368$        3,291,983$        3,830,060$        2,835,884$        2,261,815$        2,455,182$        3,079,526$        3,740,046$        
Public Safety -                    -                    -                    229,546             69,256               83,279               28,785               33,976               33,109               45,346               
Highways and streets 170,543             396,602             183,842             122,124             211,088             119,847             137,436             400,977             329,420             1,052,581          
Culture and recreation -                    -                    -                    121,358             73,149               110,857             119,273             126,290             82,832               169,965             

Operating grants and contributions 3,675,674          4,216,642          4,558,864          4,893,869          5,619,003          5,392,667          4,728,050          4,887,283          5,247,844          5,318,097          
Capital grants and contributions 13,437,638        13,834,121        3,994,640          8,321,691          10,264,829        1,781,571          6,514,602          8,980,239          7,107,063          2,920,335          

Total governmental activities program revenues 21,185,879        22,231,414        12,750,714        16,980,571        20,067,385        10,324,105        13,789,961        16,883,947        15,879,794        13,246,370        

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Water 11,917,546        11,951,413        14,038,391        13,617,336        16,803,950        16,098,086        15,136,784        15,119,065        15,817,345        16,732,600        
Stormwater Utility -                    14,710               21,401               125                    357,602             746,655             927,238             888,391             752,212             813,400             

Operating grants and contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Capital grants and contributions 840,096             2,934,747          628,501             3,066,170          3,567,083          3,697,229          362,273             1,655,307          245,607             48,871               

Total business-type activities program revenues 12,757,642        14,900,870        14,688,293        16,683,631        20,728,635        20,541,970        16,426,295        17,662,763        16,815,164        17,594,871        
Total primary government program revenues 33,943,521$      37,132,284$      27,439,007$      33,664,202$      40,796,020$      30,866,075$      30,216,256$      34,546,710$      32,694,958$      30,841,241$      

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Net (Expense)/Revenues
Governmental activities (178,111)$          (2,149,774)$       (15,119,050)$     (15,030,271)$     (15,285,650)$     (28,874,754)$     (24,539,478)$     (18,214,615)$     (19,652,749)$     (21,946,539)$     
Business-type activities 3,754,103          4,986,809          4,137,729          5,162,438          7,874,687          6,552,680          3,109,164          4,548,906          4,193,369          3,563,523          
Total primary government net expenses 3,575,992$        2,837,035$        (10,981,321)$     (9,867,833)$       (7,410,963)$       (22,322,074)$     (21,430,314)$     (13,665,709)$     (15,459,380)$     (18,383,016)$     

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:

Taxes:
Sales taxes 7,924,855$        9,536,791$        12,455,609$      16,873,630$      17,168,998$      15,376,408$      12,970,865$      11,572,148$      12,799,678$      14,241,065$      
Franchise taxes 371,697             402,482             435,428             478,175             516,652             506,685             509,285             514,814             525,427             539,477             

Impact fees* 1,189,848          1,547,819          1,098,977          1,038,217          910,741             441,020             584,113             -                    -                    -                    
Unrestricted state revenue sharing 2,845,866          2,935,615          3,343,471          4,473,305          5,544,763          5,886,132          5,086,953          4,520,935          3,461,359          9,048,365          
Unrestricted state sales tax revenue sharing 2,686,614          2,958,376          3,432,007          3,744,864          3,621,016          3,134,789          2,891,386          2,569,666          3,204,612          -                    
Unrestricted auto lieu tax revenue sharing 1,374,464          1,395,094          1,541,560          1,726,149          1,738,875          1,655,875          1,484,125          1,318,989          1,479,094          -                    
Special assessments -                    5,433,301          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Investment earnings (loss) 281,518             557,238             991,151             1,471,641          1,590,654          113,995             95,625               39,124               189,606             265,787             
Special item - Capital asset conveyance -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,606,804)         
Transfers (64,000)              (91,194)              (79,778)              69,813               1,600,000          -                    -                    -                    -                    2,319                 

Total governmental activities 16,610,862        24,675,522        23,218,425        29,875,794        32,691,699        27,114,904        23,622,352        20,535,676        21,659,776        21,490,209        

Business-type activities:
Investment earnings (loss) 285,118             591,932             956,189             1,163,837          864,494             128,083             72,244               39,745               167,106             5,471                 
Transfers 64,000               91,194               79,778               (69,813)              (1,600,000)         -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,319)               

Total business-type activities 349,118             683,126             1,035,967          1,094,024          (735,506)            128,083             72,244               39,745               167,106             3,152                 
Total primary government 16,959,980$      25,358,648$      24,254,392$      30,969,818$      31,956,193$      27,242,987$      23,694,596$      20,575,421$      21,826,882$      21,493,361$      

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities 16,432,751$      22,525,748$      8,099,375$        14,845,523$      17,406,049$      (1,759,850)$       (917,126)$          2,321,061$        2,007,027$        (456,330)$          
Business-type activities 4,103,221          5,669,935          5,173,696          6,256,462          7,139,181          6,680,763          3,181,408          4,588,651          4,360,475          3,566,675          
Total primary government 20,535,972$      28,195,683$      13,273,071$      21,101,985$      24,545,230$      4,920,913$        2,264,282$        6,909,712$        6,367,502$        3,110,345$        

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department
* Impact fees in fiscal year 2011 are now presented in program revenues.

Fiscal Year
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

General Fund
Nonspendable -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
Restricted -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Committed -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Assigned -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,769,333         1,608,035         1,608,035         
Unassigned -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   9,237,805         9,793,614         11,529,070       
Reserved 7,172                112                  7,267                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Unreserved 9,377,367         11,744,160       14,356,224       18,477,706       16,666,388       15,940,438       11,904,429       -                   -                   -                   

Total general fund 9,384,539$       11,744,272$     14,363,491$     18,477,706$     16,666,388$     15,940,438$     11,904,429$     11,007,138$     11,401,649$     13,137,105$     

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
Restricted -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   9,128,505         11,454,390       3,730,312         
Committed -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   840,704            622,919            4,166,818         
Assigned -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Unassigned -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Reserved 17,912              36,076              80,624              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds 2,720,472         3,856,925         4,439,573         4,891,095         5,534,192         5,887,082         5,868,523         -                   -                   -                   
Capital projects funds 10,573,180       10,972,912       4,985,836         4,520,718         15,396,024       9,071,398         3,933,044         -                   -                   -                   
Debt service funds 314,301            403,332            280,055            245,208            263,478            158,816            1,929,635         -                   -                   -                   

Total all other governmental funds 13,625,865$     15,269,245$     9,786,088$       9,657,021$       21,193,694$     15,117,296$     11,731,202$     9,969,209$       12,077,309$     7,897,130$       

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department
Note:

(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
(UNAUDITED)

The provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 were adopted in fiscal year 2011. The standard replaces the previous reserved and unreserved fund balance categories
with the following five fund balance classifications; nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance.

Fiscal Year

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Revenues

Taxes 8,296,552$      9,939,273$      12,891,037$    17,351,805$    17,685,650$    15,883,093$    13,480,150$    12,086,962$    13,325,105$    14,780,542$    
Intergovernmental 23,990,005      25,339,848      16,773,215      18,405,713      21,863,875      17,616,213      17,940,749      18,040,619      19,723,086      16,817,756      
Fines and forfeitures 463,150           326,427           462,246           429,458           391,921           413,720           612,031           560,941           895,820           551,962           
Licenses and permits 2,536,576        2,524,484        2,433,264        2,368,851        2,792,684        1,507,930        1,108,411        1,059,309        1,185,862        1,813,947        
Charges for services 823,287           880,582           942,676           1,026,921        1,040,694        1,066,376        965,455           926,135           1,209,814        1,630,238        
Contributions and donations 30,251             -                   97,327             19,171             249,999           1,000               59                    15,000             995                  27,229             
Special assessments -                   1,547,819        -                   189,820           193,023           367,539           368,152           365,811           366,028           365,935           
Impact fees 1,189,848        1,488,301        1,098,977        1,038,217        910,741           441,020           584,113           481,619           417,742           988,342           
Investment earnings 281,518           557,238           991,151           1,471,641        1,590,654        113,995           95,625             39,124             189,606           265,787           
Other revenues 229,411           458,034           325,428           135,261           555,790           233,123           216,030           297,109           460,512           349,326           

Total revenues 37,840,598$    43,062,006$    36,015,321$    42,436,858$    47,275,031$    37,644,009$    35,370,775$    33,872,629$    37,774,570$    37,591,064$    

Expenditures

General government 5,800,477        5,676,217        9,988,956        7,019,030        8,767,496        9,586,029        9,452,778        9,848,393        9,212,866        9,289,771        
Public safety 9,426,215        10,089,128      11,636,915      11,808,799      13,549,170      14,289,423      12,979,291      11,928,567      11,993,864      12,342,349      
Highways and streets 17,193,322      21,727,223      13,773,561      3,768,851        4,107,871        3,848,725        3,475,556        3,288,349        3,191,654        3,513,479        
Culture and recreation 2,540,949        2,640,777        3,868,249        3,109,228        3,324,066        3,416,305        3,157,369        3,031,520        2,954,549        2,468,129        
Capital Outlay -                   -                   -                   10,662,190      13,090,313      11,332,914      3,189,765        7,014,659        6,929,834        11,053,739      
Debt Service

Principal retirement 541,290           2,559,190        2,856,595        1,077,813        3,403,102        938,900           3,400,877        3,459,970        3,052,953        571,910           
Interest and fiscal charges 426,472           589,725           731,358           921,205           907,658           1,034,061        831,580           470,578           554,274           498,729           
Payment to bond escrow agent -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   6,279,112        -                   -                   -                   
Bond Issuance costs 93,415             251,327           107,897           28,868             -                   -                   26,550             -                   75,800             -                   

Total expenditures 36,022,140      43,533,587      42,963,531      38,395,984      47,149,676      44,446,357      42,792,878      39,042,036      37,965,794      39,738,106      

Excess of revenues 1,911,873$      (220,254)$        (6,840,313)$     4,069,742$      125,355$         (6,802,348)$     (7,395,553)$     (5,169,407)$     (191,224)$        (2,147,042)$     
over (under) expenditures

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Premium on bonds issued -                   -                   -                   25,719             -                   -                   -                   -                   113,835           -                   
Proceeds from loan -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Issuance of long-term loan payable 5,000,000        4,030,033        -                   -                   8,000,000        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Issuance of refunding debt 5,572,700        -                   -                   1,389,180        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Payment to bond escrow agent (5,478,016)       -                   -                   (1,540,438)       -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Issuance of long-term debt -                   -                   4,164,050        -                   -                   -                   -                   2,445,000        2,580,000        -                   
Transfers in 1,182,168        1,105,422        1,248,569        2,927,754        8,447,951        1,950,898        10,012,679      860,143           1,003,666        1,704,272        
Transfers out (1,246,168)       (1,196,616)       (1,328,347)       (2,857,941)       (6,847,951)       (1,950,898)       (10,012,679)     (795,020)          (1,003,666)       (2,001,953)       

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,030,684        3,938,839        4,084,272        (55,726)            9,600,000        -                       -                   2,510,123        2,693,835        (297,681)          

Net change in fund balances 6,942,557$      3,718,585$      (2,756,041)$     4,014,016$      9,725,355$      (6,802,348)$     (7,395,553)$     (2,659,284)$     2,502,611$      (2,444,723)$     

Debt service as a percentage of 4.62% 13.05% 13.02% 7.17% 12.51% 5.88% 10.60% 12.36% 11.55% 3.76%
noncapital expenditures

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department

Fiscal Year
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2013 2004
Percentage Percentage

of Total Town of Total Town
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Ventana Medical Systems 1,500               1 8.38% 413 2 2.37%
Oro Valley Hospital 616                  2 3.44%
Hilton El Conquistador Golf & Tennis Resort 460                  3 2.57% 425 1 2.44%
Amphitheater Public Schools 424                  4 2.37% 140 7 0.80%
Town of Oro Valley 321                  5 1.79% 334 3 1.92%
Walmart Supercenter 249                  6 1.39%
Fry's Food & Drug Store 246                  7 1.37% 295 4 1.69%
Splendido at Rancho Vistoso 176                  8 0.98%
Kohls 125                  9 0.70%
Target 120                  10 0.67% 150 6 0.86%
Hilton El Conquistador Country Club 260 5 1.49%
Long Realty 130 8 0.71%
Home Depot 124 9 0.67%
Stone Canyon Golf/Golf Club at Vistoso 117 10 0.67%

Total 4,237             23.67% 2,388             13.62%

Source:  Principal Employers Arizona Workforce Informer

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

(UNAUDITED)
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR NINE YEARS PRIOR
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Fiscal Year 2013 Fiscal Year 2005
Percentage of Percentage of

Sales Tax Total Sales Sales Tax Total Sales
Taxpayer Business Type Payments Rank Tax Payments Payments Rank Tax Payments

Taxpayer A Utility 1,762,418$              1 12.43%
Taxpayer B Retail Trade 839,695                   2 5.92%
Taxpayer C Retail Trade 588,990                   3 4.15% 584,705$                 3 6.27%
Taxpayer D Utility 468,554                   4 3.30%
Taxpayer E Construction 461,178                   5 3.25%
Taxpayer F Utility 403,076                   6 2.84%
Taxpayer G Retail Trade 401,374                   7 2.83% 532,775                   4 5.72%
Taxpayer H Retail Trade 325,141                   8 2.29%
Taxpayer I Accomodation 303,832                   9 2.14% 1,086,800                1 11.66%
Taxpayer J Construction 301,394                   10 2.13%
Taxpayer K Retail Trade 221,823                   5 2.38%
Taxpayer L Construction 709,681                   2 7.61%
Taxpayer M Construction 214,447                   6 2.30%
Taxpayer N Construction 179,052                   7 1.92%
Taxpayer O Retail Trade 162,693                   8 1.75%
Taxpayer P Construction 157,634                   9 1.69%
Taxpayer Q Construction 123,461                   10 1.32%

Total 5,855,652$             41.30% 3,973,071$             42.63%

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue
Note: 2005 is the first fiscal year of available data of sales tax payments by business type

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
PRINCIPAL SALES TAXPAYERS

CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR EIGHT YEARS PRIOR
(UNAUDITED)

Page 113



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Construction 3,014$     3,594$       5,602$      6,895$     7,038$      5,143$      2,110$      1,707$      1,738$        2,842$        
Manufacturing 29            137            165          181          280           230           230           266           258             258             
Transportation, Warehousing, Communications & Utilities 50            116            91            226          1,279        1,632        1,554        1,534        2,450          2,785          
Wholesale Trade 46            54             56            58            69             54             75             93             106             110             
Retail Trade 2,722       2,942         3,229       3,665       4,017        4,264        4,544        4,720        4,925          5,153          
Restaurants, Bars & Lodging 1,556       1,888         2,392       2,720       2,775        2,333        2,283        2,314        2,314          2,164          
Finance, Insurance & Real Estate 101          142            155          859          496           324           381           324           333             335             
Services 393          379            262          313          312           322           378           417           456             456             
All Other    (13)          68             197          167          337           896           627           102           103             75               
Cable Franchise 372          402            435          478          517           507           509           515           525             540             

Total 8,270$    9,722$      12,584$   15,562$  17,120$    15,705$   12,691$   11,992$   13,208$     14,718$     

Town sales tax rate* 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Source:  Arizona Department of Revenue

*Note:
1% Additional Bed Tax Effective May 1, 1990
3% Additional Bed Tax Effective September 1, 2001
4% Construction Sales Tax Effective May 1, 2004
6% Additional Bed Tax Effective January 1, 2006
2% Utility Sales Tax Effective April 1, 2007
2% Additional Utility Sales Tax Effective August 1, 2011

Fiscal Year

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED)
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Town of Oro
Town of Oro Town of Oro Valley Town of Oro 

Fiscal Valley Valley Construction Valley
Year Sales Tax Bed Tax Sales Tax Utility Sales Tax Pima County

2004 2.00% 3.00% 4.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2005 2.00% 3.00% 4.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2006 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 0.00% 6.10%
2007 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 6.10%
2008 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 6.10%
2009 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 6.10%
2010 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 7.10%
2011 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 7.10%
2012 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 4.00% 7.10%
2013 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 4.00% 6.10%

Source:  Arizona Department of Revenue

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
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Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Certificates Special Total Percentage
Fiscal Capital of Loan Excise Tax Assessment Revenue Notes Capital Loan Primary of Personal Per
Year Leases Participation Payable Bonds Bonds Bonds Payable Leases Payable Government Income Capita

2004 -                    610,000              6,716,000     9,734,132        -               65,625,010        -                -              -             82,685,142     6.08% 2,193            
2005 -                    420,000              4,803,100     9,413,909        3,945,000     64,222,360        -                -              -             82,804,369     5.67% 2,106            
2006 -                    215,000              2,604,143     13,173,254       3,945,000     64,437,008        -                -              -             84,374,405     5.48% 2,098            
2007 -                    -                     2,500,000     12,891,148       3,760,000     61,568,852        -                -              -             80,720,000     4.81% 1,897            
2008 -                    -                     8,000,000     12,183,046       3,565,000     59,586,954        -                -              5,731,766   89,066,766     5.02% 2,040            
2009 -                    -                     8,000,000     11,449,146       3,360,000     57,575,854        -                107,046      5,788,122   86,280,168     4.72% 1,975            
2010 -                    -                     5,513,133     4,939,750        3,145,000     52,305,500        -                123,883      6,305,650   72,332,916     3.86% 1,662            
2011 -                    -                     2,513,133     7,149,780        2,920,000     49,803,970        -                35,392        5,473,096   67,895,371     3.73% 1,656            
2012 -                    -                     -                   9,485,968        2,685,000     45,988,331        -                -                  5,893,122   64,052,421     3.85% 1,550            
2013 -                    -                     -                   9,155,743        2,435,000     43,349,121        -                185,307      5,575,041   60,700,212     3.59% 1,409            

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department and U.S. Census Bureau

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED)
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Estimated
Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt

Pima County 1,349,792,000$  7.25% 97,859,920$      
Pima County Community College District 1,355,000           7.25% 98,238               
Amphitheater Unified School District No. 10 75,135,000         18.15% 13,637,003        

Total Overlapping 111,595,160      

Town of Oro Valley 11,590,743         100.00% 11,590,743        

Total Direct 11,590,743        

Total direct and overlapping debt 123,185,903$    

Source:  Pima County, Pima County Community College District and Amphitheater Unified School District No. 10.
(1) Proportion applicable to the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, is computed on the ratio of secondary
assessed valuation for 2012-13.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Debt Limit 84,941,970$    93,101,081$    108,807,180$  120,435,053$  151,537,994$  178,543,952$  180,420,396$  174,800,436$  163,628,543$  154,118,112$  

Total net debt applicable to limit -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

Legal debt margin 84,941,970$    93,101,081$    108,807,180$  120,435,053$  151,537,994$  178,543,952$  180,420,396$  174,800,436$  163,628,543$  154,118,112$  

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department

Fiscal Year

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Page 118



Net secondary assessed valuation 592,761,968$      

Water, Sewer, Light, Parks, Open Space and
Recreational Facility Bonds

Debt limit - 20% of secondary net assessed valuation 118,552,394$      

Debt applicable to limit
   General obligation bonds outstanding -$                
   Less amount set aside for repayment of debt -                  
Net debt applicable to limit -                      

20% legal debt margin 118,552,394$      

All other general obligation bonds

Debt Limit - 6% of secondary net assessed valuation 35,565,718          

Debt applicable to limit
   General obligation bonds outstanding -$                
   Less amount set aside for repayment of debt -                  
Net debt applicable to limit -                      

All other general obligation bonds debt margin 35,565,718          

Total legal debt margin 154,118,112$      

Source:  Pima County Assessor's Office

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY
CALCULATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)
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Water Utility Revenue Bonds
Fiscal Gross
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage

2004 12,202,664    1,478,710         2,650,195         4,128,905         2.96
2005 12,544,928    1,473,710         2,949,409         4,423,119         2.84
2006 14,989,621    1,907,362         2,888,226         4,795,588         3.13
2007 14,810,173    2,336,330         2,552,081         4,888,411         3.03
2008 17,668,212    1,981,898         2,452,583         4,434,481         3.98
2009 16,223,544    2,011,100         2,784,444         4,795,544         3.38
2010 15,207,113    5,270,354         2,689,427         7,959,781         1.91
2011 15,359,681    2,501,530         2,505,960         5,007,490         3.07
2012 15,983,999    2,370,180         2,190,894         4,561,074         3.50
2013 16,732,600    2,536,840         1,732,008         4,268,848         3.92

Governmental Revenue Bonds
Fiscal Gross
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage

2004 19,837,894    361,290            386,228            747,518            26.54
2005 21,011,720    456,290            433,108            889,398            23.62
2006 25,018,727    452,638            415,640            868,278            28.81
2007 29,200,152    788,670            642,711            1,431,381         20.40
2008 30,629,130    708,102            501,150            1,209,252         25.33
2009 28,084,482    733,900            486,372            1,220,272         23.01
2010 25,695,598    6,510,516         933,536            7,444,052         3.45
2011 23,921,715    234,970            253,984            488,954            48.92
2012 25,085,767    304,820            314,703            619,523            40.49
2013 28,135,868    321,910            371,951            693,861            40.55

Certificates of Participation
Fiscal Gross
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage

2004 19,837,894    180,000            15,768              195,768            101.33
2005 21,011,720    190,000            26,690              216,690            96.97
2006 25,018,727    205,000            16,566              221,566            112.92
2007 29,200,152    -                        -                        -                        0.00
2008 30,629,130    -                        -                        -                        0.00
2009 28,084,482    -                        -                        -                        0.00
2010 25,695,598    -                        -                        -                        0.00
2011 23,921,715    -                        -                        -                        0.00
2012 25,085,767    -                        -                        -                        0.00
2013 28,135,868    -                        -                        -                        0.00

Special Assessment 
Fiscal Gross
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage

2004 -                     -                        -                        -                        0.00
2005 -                     -                        -                        -                        0.00
2006 -                     -                        176,967            176,967            0.00
2007 379,840         185,000            186,828            371,828            0.00
2008 365,810         195,000            177,577            372,577            0.98
2009 367,539         205,000            248,429            453,429            0.81
2010 368,152         215,000            152,203            367,203            1.00
2011 365,811         225,000            147,548            372,548            0.98
2012 366,028         235,000            132,423            367,423            1.00
2013 365,935         250,000            117,576            367,576            1.00

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department

Debt Service

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Debt Service

Debt Service

Debt Service
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Personal Per
Income Capita

(thousands Personal Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Rate

2004 37,700 1,360,700,031       36,093         2.6%
2005 39,310 1,461,373,787       37,176         2.5%
2006 40,215 1,539,868,259       38,291         3.0%
2007 42,551 1,678,195,258       39,440         2.6%
2008 43,651 1,773,226,205       40,623         3.0%
2009 43,694 1,828,222,176       41,841         5.1%
2010 43,521 1,875,613,105       43,097         6.2%
2011 41,011 1,820,460,164       44,390         6.0%
2012 41,335 1,661,839,665       40,204         6.4%
2013 43,070 1,692,780,210       39,303         6.4%

Source:  US Census Bureau, Arizona Employment statistics and Pima Association of Governments

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Function/Program

Administration

Town Clerk 4.54 4.44 4.60 4.00 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.50 4.50 4.00
Town Manager 7.00 7.10 7.10 8.10 8.50 8.10 6.00 6.00 5.00 4.00
Human Resources 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Economic Development 3.00 1.00 1.00 1.40 1.40 2.25 2.25 2.00 2.00 2.00
Finance 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 9.00 9.00 8.00 7.50 7.50 7.50
Information Systems 6.50 6.50 8.00 8.00 7.00 8.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 2.00
Legal 6.00 8.00 8.00 7.00 10.00 10.25 10.25 10.25 6.25 8.00

Community Development

Building Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.00 16.00 18.00 17.00 16.00 16.00 17.00
Community Development Admin. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Planning & Zoning 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.00 16.00 16.00 14.00 13.50 13.50 13.50

Development & Infrastructure Services 77.22 73.38 73.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Parks and Recreation 27.26 20.62 22.70 27.50 27.60 28.10 27.00 20.80 20.80 20.30

Cultural Resources 1.35 1.30 1.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Library 0.00 18.55 18.40 18.50 18.70 19.40 19.30 19.43 14.00 14.00

Police

Civilians 30.25 30.25 29.70 30.70 33.00 34.00 34.00 29.00 28.00 29.00
Officers 101.44 97.96 95.00 97.90 102.40 108.00 105.00 96.00 92.00 88.00

Magistrate Court 8.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 8.50 8.50 8.50 8.50 7.50

Public Works 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.70 52.90 56.10 53.13 54.00 51.50 28.50

Water Utility 36.00 36.00 34.00 35.00 36.30 35.50 35.50 34.00 34.00 33.00

Total 320.56 325.10 323.90 331.80 356.4 369.80 353.53 332.48 314.55 285.30

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30
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Fiscal Irrigation Construction Turf Wholesale/
Year Residential Commercial Irrigation Reclaimed Construction Reclaimed Turf Reclaimed Unmetered Total

2004 6,396,018         499,034        751,420        -                      253,128        -                    1,140,124     -                        53,346      9,093,070         
2005 6,758,806         515,989        833,179        -                      401,095        -                    1,200,402     -                        -                9,709,471         
2006 7,227,509         614,474        921,364        -                      368,784        -                    940,753        670,968            1,235        10,745,087       
2007 7,187,885         614,404        978,556        1,555              542,879        -                    680,833        1,015,709         -                11,021,820       
2008 7,511,067         667,910        1,146,222     796                 652,446        1,630            666,558        1,039,969         -                11,686,598       
2009 7,573,960         749,019        1,093,852     9,007              349,994        3,757            265,413        1,389,783         -                11,434,785       
2010 8,040,762         902,432        1,152,529     14,240            222,447        720               354,308        1,383,592         -                12,071,030       
2011 8,043,658         921,825        1,166,921     13,258            92,257          814               130,704        1,669,045         -                12,038,482       
2012 7,761,639         954,472        1,050,602     13,466            120,830        653               115,568        1,561,750         -                11,578,980       
2013 7,752,934         962,824        1,040,793     19,000            196,354        884               135,720        1,507,574         -                11,616,083       

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Water Utility Department

WATER UTILITY REVENUES BY USER TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Function/Program

Police
Burglaries 94 124 97 112 125 125 120 100 134 105
Citations (traffic) 9,413 8,660 8,203 8,183 7,497 9,256 6,736 5,244 5,084 5,456
Investigations 3,788 4,216 5,106 6,656 6,892 917 732 746 711 681
Total Arrests 2,184 2,076 2,053 2,236 2,254 2,478 2,176 1,932 1,716 1,564
Thefts 572 580 568 575 577 528 567 656 571 563

Development & Infrastructure Services
Street resurfacing (miles) 8.0 17.3 5.4 7.7 10.5 53.4 14.8 13.9 22.4 30.5

Parks and Recreation
Recreation Programs Held Annually 23 30 38 42 46 46 40 47 37 35
Months of Public Pool Operations 10 10 10 10 10 10 12 12 12 10
Parks Maintenance Man-Hours Worked 13,520 13,520 13,520 15,600 17,472 16,288 16,120 18,680 16,016 17,000

Library
Collection volume 75,000 80,000 86,000 90,000 96,000 95,750 100,142 100,652 97,364 0

Water
New connections 533 377 508 367 346 196 68 61 97 213
Total connections 16,578 16,955 17,463 17,830 18,177 18,373 18,441 18,502 18,599 18,812

Transit
Total route miles 177,283 190,609 165,202 165,202 175,841 163,964 138,752 138,333 200,058 353,936
Passengers 13,991 15,937 14,387 14,858 16,908 17,101 15,573 14,873 20,119 32,442

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department
Note:  Oro Valley Library was transferred to Pima County Library District on January 1, 2013.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
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Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 GPF
Year monthly per 1,000 per 1,000 per 1,000 per 1,000 per 1,000

2004 12.30        1.92        2.55        3.25        N/A 0.21$      

2005 12.65        1.98        2.68        3.58        N/A 0.21        

2006 12.65        1.98        2.68        3.58        N/A 0.21        

2007 13.25        2.08        2.81        3.76        N/A 0.25        

2008 13.25        2.08        2.81        3.76        5.00$      0.40        

2009 13.91        2.18        2.95        3.95        5.25        0.55        

2010 14.19        2.20        2.99        4.03        5.38        0.75        

2011 14.19        2.20        2.99        4.03        5.38        0.75        

2012 14.19        2.20        2.99        4.03        5.38        0.95        

2013 14.19        2.20        2.99        4.03        5.38        0.95        

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
WATER RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Function/Program

Police
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Substations 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
Patrol units 93 103 105 105 113 109 108 53 67 66
Other fleet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55 42 43

Development & Infrastructure Services
Streets (miles) 182.7 188.0 191.3 201.9 220.1 220.1 214.0 203.8 203.8 205.1
Streetlights 171 187 187 193 218 253 272 234 270 272
Traffic signals 8 10 10 15 16 16 18 16 17 19

Parks and recreation
Acreage 87 87 300 300 300 300 374 374 436 436
Playgrounds 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Baseball/softball diamonds 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Water
Wells 21 22 22 22 19 22 18 22 22 22
Storage capacity (MG) 16 17 17 17.5 18 19 19 20 20 20
Booster capacity 29 28 28 28 27 27 26 25 25 25

Transit
Transit vans 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 5 5 5
Transit mini buses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 10 12

Source:  Town of Oro Valley Finance Department

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
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October 23, 2013 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council 
Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Oro Valley, Arizona for 
the year ended June 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon.  Professional standards require that 
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 
standards, Government Auditing Standards as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our engagement letter 
provided to you during the planning phase of the audit.  Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by Town of Oro Valley, Arizona are described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing 
policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no transactions entered into by the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and 
clear.   
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 
 
Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management.  During the course of the audit we did not identify any uncorrected 
misstatements and/or audit adjustments that we deemed to be material.  However, as part of the 
professional services we provided to the Town we assisted with the preparation of the financial 
statements and notes to financial statements.  In providing this service we prepared adjusting 
journal entries necessary to convert your accounting records to the basis of accounting required 
by generally accepted accounting principles.  Those adjusting journal entries have been provided 
to management who reviewed and approved those entries and accepted responsibility for them.   
 

TUCSON  •  PHOENIX  •  FLAGSTAFF
www.heinfeldmeech.com

10120 N. Oracle Road
Tucson, Arizona 85704

Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718



Page 2 

Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made 
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, 
and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Responsibility for Fraud 
It is important for both management and the members of the Town Council to recognize their role in 
preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud.  One common misconception is that the auditors are 
responsible for detecting fraud.  Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused by 
fraud.  Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold.     
 
The attached document is provided as a courtesy and provides some basic steps that should be taken 
to help prevent fraud from occurring in your organization.  Some of these steps may already be in 
place, others may not.  Not even the most well-designed internal controls or procedures can prevent 
and detect all forms of fraud.  However, an awareness of fraud related factors, as well as the active 
involvement by management and the members of the Town Council in setting the proper “tone at the 
top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be prevented, deterred and detected.   
 
The information in this letter is intended solely for the use of the members of the Town Council and 
management of Town of Oro Valley, Arizona and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C. 
CPAs and Business Consultants 



Steps Management Should Take in Preventing the Occurrence of Fraud 

 

  

First and Foremost, acknowledge that fraud can and does occur – Fraud occurs in organizations 
often because management provides the perpetrator with a substantial amount of authority and a high 
degree of trust.  Consequently, management performs limited or no review of the individual’s work.  
Recognizing that fraud can occur in any organization, including your own, is the first step in 
prevention. 

Clearly communicate to employees the behavior that is expected of them – Believe it or not, 
ignorance has been cited as a common cause of fraud.  Some employees have been trained to commit 
fraudulent acts without knowing what they were doing, just assuming that "that’s the way it’s done". 

Take strong action against employees who commit fraud – Call the police or other law 
enforcement agency and press charges.  Failing to do so sends a message to other employees that 
management doesn’t take fraud seriously. 

Provide employees an opportunity to report the occurrence of fraud or other abuse 
anonymously – In a recent survey, one in five employees said they were personally aware of the 
occurrence of fraud in the workplace.  Eighty percent said they would be willing to report fraud if 
they did not have to identify themselves.  Management can establish a fraud hotline, "suggestion 
boxes," or other means to enable employees to bring the occurrence of fraud to its attention without 
requiring employees to give their names. 

Conduct your own activities on a high ethical level – Employees will follow the lead of the 
governing body and management, whether that lead is ethical or not.  More than what is said or 
included in a policy manual, the actions of the governing body and management establish behavioral 
norms. 

Be alert to changes in employee attitudes, behavior and lifestyles – Because of day-to-day 
contact, management is in the best position to observe the unusual – attitudes that are hostile or 
defensive toward management or the organization in general, changes in behavior that are 
inconsistent with employees’ normal disposition or lifestyles that are not reasonable based on the 
employees’ level of compensation.  Matters that may be of particular concern include: 

 Indications of dissatisfaction with compensation, or a lack of promotion 

 Indications of gambling 

 Indications of drug use or excessive use of alcohol 

 Indications of financial distress 

 Indications of severe stress 



Steps Management Should Take in Preventing the Occurrence of Fraud 

 

  

Perform thorough background checks on all new employees – Call former employers and 
educational institutions for verification of previous employment and education.  Beware of "gaps" in 
employment or educational history.  Consider obtaining a credit report (if authorized by the 
candidate) before employment. 

Require uninterrupted vacations for all employees and establish a schedule of rotation of 
employee responsibilities – More than just good management, rotation of duties provides a strong 
disincentive to commit fraud. In addition, it provides an opportunity to discover fraud that has 
already occurred. 

Establish a budget – The governing body/management should establish an operating budget and 
monitor actual results on a regular basis.  Any significant variances should be investigated. 

Monitor exception reports – Unprocessed transactions should be carefully examined for propriety.  
This includes revenues, expenses, purchasing and payroll transactions. 

Control the mail –The mail should be picked up by an employee who has no responsibilities related 
to the handling or recording of deposits, accounts receivable records or revenues.  All remittances 
should be directed to a post office box.  Limiting access to the organization’s mail is essential in 
preventing the unauthorized negotiation of cash receipts. 

Control the bank statements – Similarly, the bank statements should be picked up by an employee 
who has no related responsibilities and delivered to the management or other person independent of 
the reconciliation process.  This person should review the contents of the statements before they are 
reconciled.  Specific items to be alert to include: 

 Missing checks 

 Checks issued out of sequence 

 Unknown payees 

 Checks that appear to have been altered 

 Checks not signed by authorized signatories 

 Other unusual items 

Account for sequences – Whether it is checks, invoices, credit memoranda, receiving reports, 
shipping documents, or other pre-numbered items, all sequences should be accounted for.  Voided 
documents should be defaced to prevent unauthorized use and retained to complete sequences. 



Steps Management Should Take in Preventing the Occurrence of Fraud 

 

  

Control general journal entries – Management should either make or personally review and 
approve all general journal entries.  Supporting documentation should be reviewed before approving 
general journal entries.  In particular, the following items should be investigated: 

 Entries made to unrelated accounts 

 Entries made to receivables or revenues at or near the close of a period 

 Entries made by persons whose responsibilities are not consistent with the accounts being 
adjusted 

Obtain reasonable fidelity bond coverage – If the unthinkable occurs, insurance coverage is the 
most likely means of recovery of amounts misappropriated.  The amount of coverage should be 
reviewed periodically for adequacy. 

Evaluate the internal control framework – Lastly, evaluate the internal control framework of your 
organization.  One particular useful evaluation tool is available in the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organization’s (COSO) guidance on internal control over financial reporting for smaller 
organizations.  This guidance may be obtained through the AICPA’s website at www.cpa2biz.com 
(product #990017). 

© Audit Litigation, Training and Efficiency Consulting, Inc. 2008  

 
 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   2.           
Meeting Date: 11/06/2013  

Submitted By: Kristy Diaz-Trahan, Parks and Recreation
Department: Parks and Recreation

Information
SUBJECT:
RESOLUTION NO. (R)13-65, AUTHORIZING THE CONSTRUCTION OF NARANJA PARK
IMPROVEMENTS

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the following funding sources totaling $2.3 million to support the proposed
improvements shown in Attachment 1:

• Combination of General Fund Contingency Reserves and Parks & Recreation Impact Fees not to
exceed maximum combined  total of $1,703,000 (estimated allocation is $1.4 million from General Fund
Contingency Reserves and $300,000 from Parks & Recreation Impact Fees) 
• $400,000 Bed Tax Fund Contingency Reserves
• $197,000 Council-designated Reserve in the General Fund (rollover savings from the transfer of library
operations to Pima County)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This appropriation provides the framework for future development of Naranja Park. The project will
include the following:

Infrastructure

• Grading 
A total of 26.4 acres will be graded to plan for park improvements and future park improvements.
 

• Roadway
Site access to this first phase of development will be from Naranja Drive via the existing park
access road. This paved road is in fairly good condition, needing only minor improvements. There
is a small section at the north terminus that will require widening in order to maintain an adequate
two-way traffic width (24' minimum).

 
Just north of the turn-in into the phase 1 development, the existing crumbling asphalt will be
removed and replaced by a new compacted gravel drive. The compacted gravel drive will access
the current area being utilized by Town Street Operations, as well as the Oro Valley Flyers. Turning
into the phase 1 development, the balance of the paved access will incorporate a new drive into the
phase 1 parking lot, set between the dog park and the multi-use fields. This portion of the paving
will consist of either a double shot chip seal or compacted asphalt millings over native compacted
subgrade.

• Electricity



Electricity to the site will be through Tucson Electric Power (TEP).  TEP will share in a small portion
of the cost and the Town will fund the remaining. 
 

 • Water 
Both potable and reclaim water will be extended to the site.  The Town will not pay any water
development impact fees to the Water Utility.
 

 • Technology 
Town staff is evaluating the cost of installing Information Technology conduit from Town Hall to the
Naranja Park.
 

Amenities

• 2 lighted multisport athletic fields

• 180 space lighted parking lot

• 0.55 acre lighted and grass dog park (small/large divided)

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
In 1996 and 2000, the Town purchased a total of 213 acres currently known as Naranja Park. The
property was identified as early as 1994 in the Town’s Parks, Open Space and Trails Master Plan as an
excellent opportunity for the development of a regional park. It was later adopted in the 1996 General
Plan as parks/open space land use, which was carried into the 2005 General Plan.

A 14-month master planning process commenced in 2001 with extensive community participation from
the general public and 38 stakeholder groups, including residents from the adjoining neighborhoods of
Copper Creek, Monterra Hills, and Monte del Oro. Monthly meetings of the Executive Committee and
Task Force, community workshops, a web-based survey, and 26 other forums were held that were all
open for anyone to attend and provide ideas and comments. The initial Master Plan was adopted by
Council in November 2002.

Sub-studies were conducted between May 2006 and March 2007, resulting in a Programming & Concept
Design report. In 2008, voters were asked to authorize bonds in the amount of $48.6 million to construct
Phase I of the plan. The ballot item to support funding this project by bonds was rejected.

From 2008 to 2011, very little progress has been made in the park. However, multi-use trails and a
runway strip for remote control flyers were built. In the fall of 2010, Council asked the Parks & Recreation
staff to explore alternative ways to utilize the park, as well as contemplate alternate uses not previously
considered. Consequently, an organized archery community came forward with funding and grant
opportunities which led to the development of an archery range with a fixed course and two walking
courses.

As a result of this success, a new creative look at the development of Naranja Park began. Infrastructure
phasing was now a consideration, as was using staff intellectual resources. Concurrently in Fiscal Year
2014, the Town recognized a prior-year General Fund budget surplus, Council designated reserves,
Impact Fees, and Bed Tax reserves as feasible funding resources in building Naranja Park.

In addition to funding, the manner in which to develop the park was reanalyzed. The general philosophy
in the planning of this project was to parcel the site into manageable portions that were economically
feasible to develop. To that end, the terrain was an important consideration to minimize the impact of
re-sculpting the land to fit the park. Overall, the utilized approach was to fit the park to the terrain.

Therefore, the primary developable portion of the site was parceled into seven distinct areas that both
work together and also work independently. These developable areas range in size from 4 to 26.4 acres



and consist of independent plateaus that are leveled appropriately for the construction of sports fields.
Each of the plateaus are set to individually balance the earthwork needed in order to be graded.

The first phase of the development, as exhibited in Attachment 1, consists of constructing park elements
in the south 26.4 acre plateau. This is the easiest of all the areas to develop because it is positioned in
one of the flatter portions on the existing site. This site will be gently graded to provide a relatively flat
area that will drain into the existing natural basin just to the south, while also maintaining a level surface
in which to place sports fields. Outside of the first phase of the actual park amenities, the remaining
leveled ground will be stabilized to protect from dust generation.

Site access to the first phase of development will be from Naranja Drive via the existing park access road.
This paved road is in good condition and needs only minor improvements. Just north of the turn-in into
the phase 1 development, the existing crumbling asphalt will be removed and replaced by a new
compacted gravel drive. The compacted gravel drive will access the current areas being utilized by Town
Street Operations and the Oro Valley Flyers.

Turning into the phase 1 development, the balance of the paved access will incorporate a new drive into
the phase 1 parking lot, located between the dog park and the multi-use fields. This portion of the paving
will consist of either a double shot chip seal or compacted asphalt millings over native compacted
subgrade.

Electricity will be provided from existing TEP facilities on Monterra Vista Drive and will be trenched
underground to a new transformer and switchgear pad located by the multi-purpose fields. Initially the
electric supply will be distributed throughout the development to power the lighting and irrigation controls.

Water to the development will consist of both domestic and reclaimed water. The domestic water will be
utilized for potable water needs, while the reclaimed will be fed to both the irrigation distribution and any
fire hydrants. In coordination to the routing of the water mains to this development, information technology
communication service will be run in parallel to supply future Wifi and communication needs.

All utilities and infrastructure are being sized to accommodate the future expansion of the park.

The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board unanimously approved this project during their October 15,
2013, special meeting.

The Youth Advisory Council unanimously approved this project during their regular meeting on October
29, 2013.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The project as described herein is estimated to cost $2.3 million.  Construction funding for the project has
been identified from the following sources:

Combination of General Fund contingency reserves (estimated at $1.4 million) plus Parks &
Recreation Impact Fees (estimated at $300,000), not to exceed a maximum combined total of
$1,703,000.
$400,000 from Bed Tax Fund contingency reserves
$197,000 from Council-designated reserve in the General Fund (rollover savings from the transfer
of library operations to Pima County)

The current balance of the General Fund contingency reserves is $13.1 million.  If approved, the use of
$1.4 million for this project, plus the previously approved expenditure of $2.1 million in reserves for the
undergrounding of TEP electric lines reduces this balance to approximately $9.6 million, or 35% of the
General Fund budgeted expenditures for FY 13/14.

The current balance of the Bed Tax Fund contingency reserves is $664,000.  The approved spending of
$400,000 for this project reduces this balance to approximately $264,000.



$400,000 for this project reduces this balance to approximately $264,000.

Once constructed, the anticipated annual operating expense associated with these improvements is
$120,000 for staff and operations and maintenance costs.  The anticipated annual direct revenue
generated by these improvements will be approximately $25,000 from facility rental fees.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) Resolution No. (R)13-65, authorizing the construction of Naranja Town
Park multi-use sports fields and dog park facilities as identified in Attachment 1 with the funding sources
identified herein.

Attachments
(R)13-65 Naranja Park Improvements
Site Map
PRAB Letter 2012
PRAB Letter 2013
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RESOLUTION NO. (R)13-65

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF 2.3 MILLION 
DOLLARS AS PROVIDED IN EXHIBIT “A” FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF INSTALLING INFRASTRUCTURE AND MULTIPURPOSE 
SPORTS FIELDS AT THE NARANJA PARK LOCATION

WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley (the “Town”) does not currently provide enough 
outdoor recreation opportunities for its residents at least in part due to a limited number 
of sports and recreation fields; and

WHEREAS, the Town owns a 26.4 acre tract of land otherwise known as the Naranja 
Park (the “Park”) that has not yet developed into the park envisioned in existing plans 
due to the failure of the 2008 bond measure; and

WHEREAS, the Town now has the resources to lay the groundwork by spending 2.3 
million dollars (the “Funds”) on infrastructure and multipurpose sports fields as provided 
in Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the groundwork laid by the expenditure of the Funds will allow future 
expansion of the Park as Town resources become available in the future; and

WHEREAS, water utility impact fees have been waived for this project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, to authorize and approve the 
expenditure of the Funds as provided in Exhibit “A” for the purpose of installing 
infrastructure and multipurpose sports fields and laying the groundwork for future 
expansion of the Park as future Town resources become available.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 6th day of November, 2013.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date:  Date: 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@6001B67F\@BCL@6001B67F.docTown of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/012111

EXHIBIT “A”
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December 13,2012 

Mayor Hiremath and Town Council Members, 

I am writing to you on behalf of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB). In a recent 
discussion of our 2013 goals with the Town Manager, Greg Caton, we agreed that our 2013 Parks and 
Recreation goals be delayed until receipt of the Town's updated Strategic Plan. At that time we can best 
develop specific goals through our advisory tearn in support of the Town's revised Plan. 

As members of PRAB, we are excited about 2013 and supporting the Town in more recreational projects 
much like the expansion of the Aquatic Center and the building of the Archery Range in Naranja Park. 
We would also like to call your attention to two resident requests our board spent significant time 
addressing in 2012. 

Provide soccer fieldslmulti-usefields in NaranjaPark. 
In our April 2012 meeting a PRAB study group was formed to evaluate resident requests for additional 

playing fields in Oro Valley. After several meetings by this group, a proposal was created and presented 
at our July 2012 meeting. A motion was made and approved, tasking the Parks and Recreation staff to 
prepare a budget for infrastructure, in support of four fields, as described by the Master Plan for Naranja 
Park. This would imply development requirements for irrigation, electricity, sewer and other items. 

Provide an off-leash dog park in Naranja Park. 
The resident request was made at our January 2012 meeting, from which a PRAB study group was 

formed and the results presented in our October 2012 meeting. A recommendation was made to continue 
the research for a near future bUild of the dog park. This was unanimously supported by PRAB, but not 
brought to a motion at that meeting. 

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recognizes the community need and support behind these 
facilities and request that Mayor and Council include them in your discussion and updates to the Strategic 
Plan regarding development of Naranja Park. 

l
ards, 

~ ~/"'~ 
J ck Stim:ek1

U 

Chairman, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 



October 25, 2013 

Mayor Hiremath and Town Council Members: 

I am writing to you on behalf of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB). A PRAB meeting was 
held on Tuesday, October IS, 2013 at which staff from The Town of Oro Valley presented a proposed 
plan for a project that would support more development of in demand recreation facilities at Naranja Park. 

The proposed project calls for the building of two soccer fields and an off-leash dog park. Also included 
in this build are the services and infrastructure needed at Naranja Park. The staffs cost effective 
approach to bringing electricity, potable water, irrigation water, parking and grading (to include four 
additional fields) was enthusiastically received by the PRAB members present. 

At this meeting Town Manager, Greg Caton, shared with the Board the Town's supportJor PRAB's 2012 
recommendations (see PRAB December 12, 2012 letter to Council) for soccer tields and a dog park, and 
that the Town has been working on infrastmcture and funding opportunities. 

Prior to the conclusion of the meeting, PRAB members unanimously approved this Naranja Park 
expansion project as presented by Town staff, and request that Mayor and Council join us in approving 
the next steps required to begin this expansion and improvement, at your November 6, 2013 meeting. 

~~,£ 4!u:,,/;)# 
~stinnett . 

Chairman, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

cc: Greg Caton, Town Manager. 
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